FFG

SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law

PROSPECTUS

August 2021

Subscriptions may only be effected on the basis of this prospectus ("Prospectus") including the factsheets for each sub-fund, and on the basis of key investor information ("Key Investor Information"). The Prospectus should be read in conjunction with the most recent annual report and the latest semi-annual report if more recent than the annual report.

The fact that the SICAV is included on the official list drawn up by the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier ("CSSF") shall, under no circumstances, be understood as a positive assessment on the part of the CSSF of the quality of the equities available for subscription.

No one is authorised to provide information other than that contained in the Prospectus and the articles of association (the "Articles of Association") or in the documents referred to herein.

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.	THE SICAV AND PARTIES CONCERNED2		
2.	FOREWORD4		
3.	DESCRIPTION OF THE SICAV		
4.	OBJECTIVE OF THE SICAV		
5.	ELIGIBLE INVESTMENTS6		
6.	INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS		
7.	RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN THE SICAV		
8.	MANAGEMENT COMPANY		
9.	DISTRIBUTION COORDINATOR		
10.	INVESTMENT ADVISORS		
11.	CUSTODIAN23		
12. DISTR	DESCRIPTION OF SHARES, SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND RIBUTION POLICY		
13.	OBLIGATIONS AND CONSTRAINTS RELATED TO FATCA27		
14.	SUBSCRIPTIONS, REDEMPTIONS, CONVERSIONS AND TRANSFERS28		
15.	DEFINITION AND CALCULATION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE		
16.	SUSPENSION OF THE CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE		
17.	TAXATION OF THE SICAV AND OF SHAREHOLDERS		
18.	LIQUIDATION / MERGER		
19.	FINANCIAL REPORTS		
20.	COSTS		
21.	GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS		
22.	SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION		
SUB-FUND FACTSHEETS			

1. THE SICAV AND PARTIES CONCERNED

Name of the SICAV	FFG
Registered office of the SICAV	2, rue d'Alsace L-1122 Luxembourg
Number in the Trade and Companies Register of Luxembourg R.C.S.	B211660
Legal form	Variable capital investment company (SICAV) with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law, subject to Part I of the Law of 17 December 2010 on undertakings for collective investment as amended (Law of 2010).
SICAV Board of Directors	Britta Borneff-O'Brien Independent Director
	Nicolas Crochet Director Funds for Good S.A. 68, Avenue de la Liberté L-1930 Luxembourg
	Patrick Somerhausen Director Funds for Good S.A. 68, Avenue de la Liberté L-1930 Luxembourg
Management Company of the SICAV	Waystone Management Company (Lux) S.A. (formerly MDO Management Company S.A.) 21st Century Building 19, rue de Bitbourg L-1273 Luxembourg
Board of Directors of the Management	Chairman:
Company	 Mr Géry Daeninck Independent Director,
	Directors:
	 Mr John Li How Cheong Independent Director,
	Mr Martin Peter Vogel Chief Executive Officer
Directors of the Management Company	Mr Riccardo del Tufo – Chief Operating Officer
	Mr Kim Kirsch – Head of Legal
	Mr Pall Eyjolfsson – Conducting Officer
	Mr Alessandro Gaburri – Co–Head of Risk and Client Services

	Mr Thierry Lelièvre – Head of Portfolio Management
Managers	BLI-BANQUE DE LUXEMBOURG INVESTMENTS S.A. 16, Boulevard Royal L-2449 Luxembourg
	ACADIAN ASSET MANAGEMENT LLC 260 Franklin Street 02110 Boston, Massachusetts USA
	CAPRICORN PARTNERS NV Lei 19/1 B-3000 Leuven, Belgium
Custodian and Main Paying Agent	BANQUE DE LUXEMBOURG Société anonyme (public limited company) 14, boulevard Royal L-2449 Luxembourg
Central Administration and Domiciliary Agent	EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION Société anonyme (public limited company) 2, rue d'Alsace B.P. 1725 L-1017 Luxembourg
Auditor	PricewaterhouseCoopers, société coopérative 2, rue Gerhard Mercator, L-2182 Luxembourg
Legal Adviser	Elvinger Hoss Prussen, société anonyme 2, place Winston Churchill L-1340 Luxembourg

2. FOREWORD

No one is authorised to provide information on, make statements about or give confirmations in relation to the supply, investment, subscription, sale, conversion, transfer or redemption of SICAV units, beyond the information, statements and confirmations included in the Prospectus. If such information, statements or confirmations are nonetheless provided, they may not be interpreted as having been authorised by the SICAV.

Neither delivery of the Prospectus nor the supply, investment, conversion, transfer, subscription or issue of shares in the SICAV implies or creates any guarantee that the information contained in the Prospectus remains correct after the date of delivery of said Prospectus or the supply, investment, conversion, transfer, subscription or issue of shares in the SICAV.

Investment in shares of the SICAV carries risks as set out in section 7: "Risks associated with an investment in the SICAV".

Delivery of the Prospectus and the supply or acquisition of shares in the SICAV may be illegal or restricted in some jurisdictions. The Prospectus does not constitute an offer, invitation or solicitation to subscribe or acquire shares in the SICAV in any jurisdiction in which such an offer, invitation or solicitation is unauthorised or illegal. No one receiving the Prospectus in any jurisdiction may consider delivery of the Prospectus to be an offer, invitation or solicitation to subscribe or acquire shares in the SICAV unless, in the jurisdiction concerned, such an offer, invitation or solicitation is authorised without any legal or regulatory constraints. It is the responsibility of anyone holding the Prospectus and anyone wishing to subscribe or acquire shares in the SICAV to check and comply with legal and regulatory provisions in the jurisdiction concerned.

The SICAV draws investors' attention to the fact that they may only freely exercise their investors' rights directly against the SICAV (in particular the right to attend shareholders' meetings) if they appear under their own name in the SICAV's register of shareholders. In cases where an investor invests in the SICAV through an intermediary investing in the SICAV in its own name but on behalf of the investor, the investor will not necessarily be able to exercise certain shareholder rights with respect to the SICAV. Investors are advised to inform themselves about their rights.

Regulation (EU) 2016/1011

Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 of 8 June 2016 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and contracts or to measure the performance of investment funds (the "Benchmark Regulation") entered fully into force on 1 January 2018. The Benchmark Regulation introduces a new requirement that all benchmark administrators who provide indices used or intended to be used as benchmarks in the EU must be approved or registered with the competent authority. With respect to the Sub-funds, the Benchmark Regulation prohibits the use of indices unless they are produced by an administrator located in the EU authorised by or registered with the European Securities and Markets Authority ("ESMA") or are benchmark indices that are not located in the EU but are included in the public register of ESMA under the third country regime.

The EMIX World Europe NTR Index, which is used by the FFG – European Equities Sustainable Moderate sub-fund for the calculation of the performance fee, is provided by IHS Markit and is listed on ESMA's public register, which can be accessed at the following link: <u>https://registers.esma.europa.eu/publication/</u>.

The Management Company will make available a written plan describing the actions that will be taken if the index is materially modified or ceases to exist; this plan will be made available free of charge at the registered office of the SICAV.

Regulation (EU) 2019/2088

Regulation (EU) 2019/2088 of 27 November 2019 on sustainability-related disclosures in the financial services sector (the "Sustainability Regulation"), which is part of a broader legislative package of the European Commission's Sustainability Action Plan, will enter into force on 10 March 2021. In order to comply with the requirements of this regulation, the Fund must set out how the risks associated with investing in accordance with environmental, social and governance or sustainable investment criteria are incorporated into the investment decision and the result of the assessment of the likelihood of the impacts of the risks on the Sub-funds' returns.

Sustainability risks are taken into account in investment and risk management decisions to the extent that they represent potential or material risk and/or opportunities to maximise long-term risk-adjusted returns.

Details of the Sub-funds' compliance with the Sustainability Regulation can be found in the appendices to the Sub-funds.

Processing of personal data

Personal data relating to identified or identifiable natural persons provided, collected or otherwise obtained by or on behalf of the SICAV will be processed by the SICAV in its capacity as data controller in accordance with the privacy notice which is available at the following link: http://www.fundsforgood.eu/docs/GDPR_FFG.docx

Any queries or requests for information on this subject should be sent by email to <u>dpo@fundsforgood.eu</u>.

All persons contracting or otherwise dealing directly or indirectly with the Data Controller are invited to read and carefully consider the confidentiality notice before contracting or otherwise dealing directly or indirectly with the Data Controller and in any case before providing data or having data provided to the Data Controller.

Conflicts of interest

The members of the Board of Directors of the SICAV, the Management Company, the Managers, the Distributors, the Custodian Bank and EFA as well as one of their subcontractors may be involved in other financial, investment or professional activities which may cause potential conflicts of interest with the SICAV and their respective roles in the SICAV.

Such activities may include management or advisory activities for other funds, including underlying funds, the purchase and sale of financial instruments, investment management services, brokerage services, the valuation of unlisted financial instruments (in which case fees may increase in line with the increase in the value of the assets) and activities as director, officer, adviser or agent of other funds or companies, including funds or companies in which the SICAV invests. In particular, the Managers may be involved in advising or managing other investment funds, including underlying funds that have investment objectives similar or relatively close to those of the SICAV or its subfunds.

Each member of the Board of Directors, the Management Company, the Managers, the Distributors, the Custodian Bank and EFA as well as their subcontractors will take the necessary steps to ensure that their respective duties are not affected by such roles and that any conflict of interest which may arise is resolved fairly and in the best interests of the shareholders. The Manager will seek to ensure a fair allocation of investments among its clients. Further details on the Management Company's conflict management policy are available upon request from investors.

3. DESCRIPTION OF THE SICAV

FFG is a variable capital investment company (SICAV) with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law, subject to Part I of the Law of 2010.

The SICAV was created for an indefinite period on 23 December 2016. The Articles of Association of the SICAV (the "Articles of Association") have been filed with the Trade and Companies Register where they may be consulted, and they were published in the "Recueil Electronique des Sociétés et Associations" (the "RESA") on 9 January 2017.

The consolidation currency is the euro. The minimum share capital of the SICAV is one million two hundred and fifty thousand euro (EUR 1,250,000.00) or its equivalent in another currency. The minimum share capital must be reached within six months of the SICAV's authorisation.

The financial year will end on 31 December each year.

The following sub-funds ("Sub-funds") are currently available to subscribers:

Fund name	Reference currency

FFG SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law

FFG – European Equities Sustainable Moderate	EUR
FFG – Global Flexible Sustainable	EUR
FFG – European Equities Sustainable	EUR
FFG – Cleantech II	EUR

The SICAV reserves the right to create new Sub-funds. In this case, the Prospectus will be updated accordingly.

The SICAV constitutes a single legal entity. The assets of a Sub-fund correspond exclusively to the rights of shareholders of that Sub-fund and to those of the creditors whose claim arose on the setting up, operation or liquidation of that Sub-fund.

4. OBJECTIVE OF THE SICAV

The objective of the SICAV is to offer shareholders the opportunity to invest in professionally managed funds of transferable securities and/or other financial assets as defined in the investment policy for each Sub-fund (see Sub-fund factsheets).

An investment in the SICAV should be considered a medium- to long-term investment. No guarantee can be provided that the investment objectives of the SICAV will be met.

Investments in the SICAV are subject to normal market fluctuations and risks associated with any investment, and no guarantee can be provided that investments in the SICAV will be profitable. The SICAV intends to hold a diversified investment portfolio to mitigate investment risks. The SICAV also pursues a philanthropic objective through its distribution coordinator, the company Funds for Good S.A., whose approach is certified by Forum Ethibel. Part of the remuneration of Funds for Good S.A. is redistributed to charities. Further details will be set out in the appendix relating to each Sub-fund. More information is also available at www.fundsforgood.eu.

5. ELIGIBLE INVESTMENTS

- 1. The investments of the SICAV comprise one or more of the following:
 - a. transferable securities and money market instruments listed or traded on a regulated market within the meaning of European Parliament and Council directive 2004/39/EC of 21 April 2004 on markets for financial instruments;
 - b. transferable securities and money market instruments listed or traded on another regulated market of a European Union Member State, and which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public;
 - c. transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to official listing on a stock exchange of a non-European Union Member State or traded on another regulated market of a non-European Union Member State, and which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public;
 - d. newly issued transferable securities and money market instruments, provided that:
 - the issue conditions include a commitment to apply for admission to an official listing on a stock exchange or other regulated market which operates regularly and is recognised and open to the public; and
 - such admission is obtained no later than one year after the issue;
 - e. Units of UCITS approved in accordance with Directive 2009/65/EC ("UCITS") and/or other UCI within the meaning of Article 1 paragraph (2), points a) and b) of Directive 2009/65/EC, whether or not they are located in a European Union Member State ("other UCI"), provided that:
 - other UCI are authorised in accordance with legislation stipulating that such undertakings are subject to supervision which the CSSF considers to be equivalent to that stipulated by Community legislation, and that cooperation between the authorities is adequately guaranteed;
 - the level of protection guaranteed to holders of units in such other UCI is equivalent to that stipulated for holders of units in a UCITS and, in particular, that the rules

relating to the division of assets, borrowings, loans and the short selling of transferable securities and money market instruments are equivalent to the requirements of directive 2009/65/EC;

- the business of the other UCI is reported in semi-annual and annual reports to enable an assessment to be made of the assets and liabilities, income and transactions over the reporting period;
- no more than 10% of the net assets that the UCITS or other UCI whose acquisition is considered may, according to their management regulations or deeds of association, be invested in aggregate in units of other UCITS or other UCI;
- f. deposits held at a credit institution which are redeemable on demand or which may be withdrawn and have a maturity which is less than or equal to twelve months, on condition that the credit institution has its registered offices in a European Union Member State or, if the registered offices are located in a third country, is subject to prudential rules which are regarded by the CSSF as being equivalent to those laid down by Community legislation;
- g. derivative instruments, including comparable instruments giving rise to a cash settlement, which are traded on a regulated market of the type referred to under a), b) and c) above; and OTC derivative financial instruments ("OTC derivative instruments"), on condition that:
 - the underlying assets consist of instruments covered by this point 1, financial indices, monetary interest rates, exchange rates or currencies, in which the SICAV may invest in accordance with its investment objectives, as stated in this Prospectus and the Articles of Association;
 - the counterparties to OTC derivative transactions are establishments which are subject to prudential monitoring and which belong to the categories authorised by the CSSF; and
 - the OTC derivative instruments are subject to a reliable and verifiable valuation on a daily basis and may, on the SICAV's initiative, be sold, liquidated or closed by means of a symmetrical transaction at any time and at fair value;
- h. money market instruments other than those traded on a regulated market and covered by article 1 of the Law of 2010, on condition that the issue or issuer of such instruments are themselves subject to regulations intended to protect investors and their savings, and that such instruments are:
 - issued or guaranteed by a central, regional or local authority, the central bank of a Member State, the European Central Bank, the European Union or the European Investment Bank, a non-member State or, in the case of a federal state, by one of the members forming part of the federation or by a public international body of which one or more Member States are members; or
 - issued by a company whose securities are traded on the regulated markets referred to in a), b) or c) above, or issued or guaranteed by an establishment that is subject to prudential monitoring in accordance with criteria defined by Community law, or by an establishment which is subject to and which complies with prudential rules considered by the CSSF as being at least as stringent as those laid down by Community legislation, or
 - issued by other bodies belonging to categories approved by the CSSF, on condition that investments in such instruments are subject to rules for the protection of investors which are equivalent to those referred to in the first, second or third indents above and on condition that the issuer is a company whose capital and reserves amount to a minimum of ten million euro (EUR 10,000,000) and which submits and publishes its annual accounts in accordance with the fourth Directive 78/660/EEC, or a body which, as part of a group of companies that includes one or more listed companies, is dedicated to financing the group or a body that is dedicated to financing securitisation vehicles benefiting from a line of banking finance.

- 2. However, the SICAV may not:
 - a. invest more than 10% of its net assets in transferable securities or money market instruments other than those referred to in point 1 of this section;
 - b. acquire either precious metals or certificates representing them.
- 3. The SICAV may:
 - a. acquire movable and immovable property which is essential for the direct pursuit of its business;
 - b. hold ancillary liquid assets.

6. INVESTMENT RESTRICTIONS

The criteria and restrictions described below must be observed by each of the sub-funds of the SICAV.

Restrictions relating to transferable securities and money market instruments

- a. The SICAV may invest no more than 10% of its net assets in securities or money market instruments issued by the same body. The SICAV may invest no more than 20% of its net assets in deposits placed with the same body. The counterparty risk of the SICAV in a transaction involving OTC derivative instruments may not exceed 10% of its net assets where the counterparty is one of the credit institutions referred to in section 5., point 1.f) above, or 5% of its net assets in other cases.
 - b. The total value of the transferable securities and money market instruments held by the SICAV in issuers in each of which it invests more than 5% of its net assets must not exceed 40% of the value of its net assets. This limit does not apply to deposits with financial institutions which are subject to prudential supervision and to OTC transactions on derivative instruments with these institutions.
 - c. Notwithstanding the individual limits laid down in 1.a., the SICAV may not combine any of the following if it would mean investing more than 20% of the net assets in a single body:
 - investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by said body;
 - deposits with said body; or
 - exposure arising from OTC derivative transactions undertaken with said entity.
 - d. The limit provided for in point 1.a., first sentence, is raised to a maximum of 35% if the transferable securities or money market instruments are issued or guaranteed by a Member State of the European Union, its local authorities, a non-member State or public international bodies of which one or more Member States are members.
 - e. The limit stipulated in point 1.a., first sentence, is raised to a maximum of 25% in the case of certain bonds when they are issued by a credit institution which has its registered office in a European Union Member State and which is subject by law to special public supervision designed to protect bond-holders. In particular, sums derived from the issue of these bonds must be invested in accordance with the law in assets which, during the whole period of validity of the bonds, are capable of covering claims arising from the bonds and which, in the event of failure of the issuer, would be used on a priority basis for the reimbursement of the principal and payment of the accrued interest.

When the SICAV invests more than 5% of its net assets in the bonds referred to in the first subparagraph and issued by a single issuer, the total value of such investments may not exceed 80% of the value of the SICAV's net assets.

f. The transferable securities and money market instruments referred to in 1.d and 1.e. shall not be taken into account for the purpose of applying the limit of 40% referred to in 1.b.

The limits provided for in 1.a., 1.b., 1.c., 1.d. and 1.e. may not be combined, and investments in transferable securities or money market instruments issued by the same body or in deposits or derivative instruments made with that body in accordance with 1.a., 1.b., 1.c., 1.d. and 1.e. may therefore under no circumstances exceed, in total, 35% of the net assets of the SICAV.

Companies included in the same group for the purposes of consolidated accounts, within the meaning of Directive 83/349/EEC or in accordance with recognised international accounting rules, are regarded as a single body for the purpose of calculating the limits set down in this paragraph.

The SICAV may cumulatively invest up to 20% of its net assets in transferable securities and money market instruments of the same group.

- 2. a. Without prejudice to the limits laid down in point 5, the limits laid down in point 1 are raised to a maximum of 20% for investments in equities and/or debt securities issued by the same body when, according to the Articles of Association, the aim of the SICAV's investment policy is to replicate the composition of a certain stock or debt security index which is recognised by the CSSF, on the following bases:
 - The composition of the reference index is sufficiently diversified;
 - The index constitutes a representative benchmark of the market to which it refers;
 - it is published in an appropriate manner.
 - b. The limit referred to in 2.a. is 35% where this proves to be justified by exceptional market conditions, particularly in regulated markets where certain transferable securities or money market instruments are broadly dominant. The investment up to this limit is only permitted for a single issuer.
- 3. In accordance with the principle of risk-diversification, the SICAV may invest up to 100% of its net assets in various issues of transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by an EU Member State, its local authorities, any OECD Member State or public international bodies of which one or more EU Member States or non-EU states approved by the CSSF, including Member States of the OECD, Singapore or members of the G20, provided that it holds securities belonging to at least six different issues, but securities from any one issue may not account for more than 30% of the total.

Restrictions relating to UCITS and other UCI

4. a. Unless its factsheet states that a given sub-fund may not invest more than 10% of its net assets in units of UCITS and/or UCI, the SICAV may acquire units in UCITS and/or other UCI referred to in section 5. point 1.e. ("other UCI") provided that it does not invest more than 20% of its net assets in the same UCITS or other UCI.

For the purposes of applying this investment limit, each sub-fund of a UCI with multiple sub-funds is to be regarded as a separate issuer, provided that the principle of segregation of the commitments of the different sub-funds with respect to third parties is assured.

b. Investments in units of other UCI may not exceed, in total, 30% of the net assets of the SICAV.

Where the SICAV has acquired units in UCITS and/or other UCI, the assets of such UCITS or other UCI are not combined for the purposes of the limits referred to in point 1.

c. Where the SICAV invests in the units of other UCITS and/or other UCIs which are managed, either directly or by delegation, by the Management Company or by any other company to which the Management Company is linked by common management or control, or by a significant direct or indirect

shareholding (each being a "Related UCI"), the Management Company or other company may not levy subscription or redemption charges in respect of the investment of the SICAV in the units of other Related UCIs.

- d. Where the SICAV invests a significant proportion of its assets in other UCITS and/or other Related UCIs, the maximum level of the management charges that may be charged to the sub-funds concerned and to other Related UCIs in which the sub-funds concerned intend to invest may not exceed 4% of the assets under management. In its annual report the SICAV must indicate the maximum percentage of management charges involved, with regard to the sub-funds concerned, SICAV and UCITS and/or other UCI in which the sub-funds concerned invest.
- e. A Sub-fund of the SICAV ("Investor Sub-fund") may subscribe, acquire and/or hold shares that have been or will be issued by one or more other Sub-funds of the SICAV (each being a "Target Sub-fund") without the SICAV becoming subject to the requirements of the Law of 10 August 1915 ("Law of 1915"), as amended, relating to commercial companies and covering a company's subscription, acquisition of and/or holding of its own shares, provided that:
 - the Target Sub-fund does not in turn invest in the Investor Sub-fund that is invested in this Target Sub-fund; and
 - the proportion of net assets that the Target sub-funds being considered for purchase may, in accordance with their factsheets, invest overall in the shares of other Target sub-funds of the SICAV may not exceed 10%; and
 - any voting right attached to shares held by the Investor Sub-fund in the Target Sub-fund shall be suspended for however long they will be held by the Investor Sub-fund in question, without prejudice to appropriate handling in the accounts and periodic reports; and
 - whatever the circumstances, for as long as the Investor Sub-fund holds shares in the Target Sub-fund, their value shall not be taken into account when calculating the SICAV's net assets in order to check the minimum level of net assets required by the Law of 2010.
- f. Contrary to the principle of risk diversification in section 5., section 6., points 1. and 5. b. 3rd indent and in the restrictions above but in accordance with applicable legislation and regulations, each Sub-fund of the SICAV (hereinafter "Feeder Fund") shall be authorised to invest at least 85% of its net assets in units of another investment sub-fund of the SICAV, another UCITS or one of its investment sub-funds (hereinafter "Master Fund"). A Feeder Sub-fund may invest up to 15% of its net assets in one or more of the following:
 - liquid assets on an ancillary basis in accordance with section 5., point 3.;
 - derivative instruments, which may be used solely for hedging purposes, in accordance with section 5., point 1. g. and section 6., points 10. and 11.;
 - moveable and immovable property essential for the direct pursuit of its business.

To comply with section 6., point 10., the Feeder Sub-fund calculates its overall exposure to derivative instruments by adding its own direct exposure as defined in point f., first paragraph, 2nd indent, with:

- either the Master UCITS's real exposure to derivative instruments in proportion to the Feeder Sub-fund's investments in the Master UCITS; or
- the master UCITS's maximum total potential exposure to derivative instruments allowed by the master UCITS's management regulations or deeds of association, in proportion to the feeder fund's investment in the master UCITS.
- g. A Sub-fund of the SICAV may also, in the broadest legal and regulatory sense but in accordance with any legal or regulatory provisions, be created as or converted into a master fund within the meaning of article 77(3) of the Law of 2010.

Restrictions relating to control

- 5. a. The SICAV may not acquire any shares carrying voting rights which would enable it to exercise significant influence over the management of an issuer;
 - b. Furthermore, the Sub-fund may not acquire more than:
 - 10% of the non-voting shares of any single issuer;
 - 10% of the debt securities of any single issuer;
 - 10% of money market instruments of any single issuer.

The limits specified in the second and third bullet points do not apply at the time of acquisition if at that time the gross amount of the bonds or of the money market instruments or the net amount of the securities issued cannot be calculated..

- c. Points a) and b) do not apply with regard to:
 - transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a European Union Member State or its local authorities;
 - transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a non-EU Member State;
 - transferable securities and money market instruments issued by public international bodies of which one or more EU Member States are members;
 - shares held by the SICAV in the capital of a company incorporated in a non-EU State investing its assets mainly in the securities of issuers from that State, where under the legislation of that State such a holding represents the only way in which the SICAV can invest in securities of issuers of that State. This derogation, however, shall only apply if the company from the non-member State complies with the limits set out in points 1., 4., 5.a. and 5.b. in its investment policy. Where the limits laid down in points 1 and 4 are exceeded, point 6 will apply mutatis mutandis;
 - shares held by the SICAV in the capital of subsidiary companies carrying on the business of management, advice or trading of the latter in the country in which the subsidiary is located, with respect to the repurchase of shares at the holders' request exclusively on behalf of the SICAV or its shareholders.
- d. The SICAV may not acquire than 25% of the shares of a single UCITS and/or other UCI. If at the time of acquisition the gross amount of the shares issued cannot be calculated, this limit should not be taken into account. In the case of a UCITS or other UCI with multiple sub-funds, this restriction applies to all shares issued by the UCITS/UCI in question, combining all sub-funds.

Derogations

- 6. a. The SICAV need not necessarily comply with the limits laid down in this section when exercising subscription rights attaching to transferable securities or money market instruments which form part of their assets. While ensuring observance of the principle of risk-diversification, a SICAV may derogate from points 1., 2., 3. and 4. a., b., c. and d. for six months following the date of their authorisation.
 - b. If the limits referred to in point 6.a. are exceeded for reasons beyond the control of the SICAV or as a result of the exercise of subscription rights, that SICAV must adopt as a priority objective for its sales transactions the remedying of that situation, taking due account of the interests of its shareholders.

Restrictions relating to borrowings, loans and short sales

- 7. The SICAV may not borrow, with the exception of:
 - a. the acquisition of currency using back-to-back loans;
 - b. loans up to 10% of its net assets, provided the borrowing is on a temporary basis;
 - c. loans up to 10% of its net assets, provided that the borrowing is to make possible the acquisition of immovable property essential for the direct conduct

of its business; in this case the borrowing and that referred to in point 7.b. may not in any case jointly exceed 15% of the SICAV's net assets.

- 8. Without prejudice to the application of the provisions shown in section 5. above and section 6. points 10. and 11., the SICAV may not grant loans or act as a guarantor on behalf of third parties. This restriction shall not prevent the SICAV from acquiring transferable securities, money market instruments or other financial instruments referred to in section 5., points 1.e., 1.g. and 1.h., which are not fully paid up.
- 9. The SICAV may not short sell transferable securities, money market instruments or other financial instruments referred to in section 5., points 1.e., 1.g. and 1.h.

<u>Restrictions on instruments and techniques for efficient portfolio management and on</u> <u>derivative financial instruments</u>

10. Derivative instruments may be used for the purpose of investment, hedging or effective portfolio management. Securities lending transactions and repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements may be used for the purposes of effective portfolio management. Any additional restrictions or exemptions for given sub-funds may be described in the factsheets of the sub-funds concerned.

Each sub-fund's aggregate exposure to derivatives may not exceed the total net asset value of the sub-fund in question.

Risks are calculated taking due account of the current value of the underlying assets, the counterparty risk, foreseeable market development and the time available to liquidate positions.

In the context of its investment policy and within the limits laid down in point 1.f. above, the SICAV may invest in financial derivative instruments provided that the exposure to the underlying assets does not exceed the investment limits laid down in point 1. When the SICAV invests in derivative financial instruments based on an index, these investments shall not be combined to the limits set in point 1.

When a transferable security or money market instrument involves a derivative, the latter must be taken into account when applying the provisions in this point.

For the purposes of effective portfolio management and with a view to increasing the SICAV's profits or reducing costs and risks, the SICAV may enter into (i) securities lending transactions, (ii) sale with right of repurchase transactions and (iii) repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements, where authorised by and within the limits established by applicable regulations, in particular Article 11 of the Luxembourg regulation of 8 February 2008 relating to certain definitions of the Law of 2010 as well as CSSF circular 08/356 concerning rules applicable to undertakings for collective investment where they use certain techniques and instruments that involve transferable securities and money market instruments (as they may be amended or replaced from time to time) and CSSF Circular 14/592.

Where the SICAV enters into OTC financial derivative transactions and/or uses efficient portfolio management techniques, all financial guarantees used to reduce exposure to counterparty risk must at all times comply with the criteria set out below:

- a) Liquidity: any financial guarantee received in a form other than cash must be very liquid and be traded on a regulated market or in a multilateral trading system with transparent pricing, such that it can be sold quickly at a price close to the valuation prior to the sale. The financial guarantees received must also comply with the provisions of Article 56 of Directive 2009/65/EC.
- b) Valuation: the financial guarantees received must be valued at least daily and assets displaying a high level of price volatility may not be accepted

as financial guarantees unless sufficiently prudent discounts have been applied.

- c) Issuer credit quality: the financial guarantees received must be excellent.
- d) Correlation: the financial guarantees received by the SICAV must be issued by an entity independent of the counterparty and shall not be deemed to be highly correlated with the performance of the counterparty.
- e) Diversification of financial guarantees (asset concentration); Financial guarantees must be sufficiently diversified in terms of countries, markets and issuers. The criterion of sufficient diversification with regard to concentration of issuers shall be deemed to have been met if the SICAV receives from one counterparty, in the context of effective portfolio management techniques and OTC transactions on derivative instruments, a basket of financial guarantees representing an exposure to a given issuer of no more than 20% of its net asset value. If the SICAV is exposed to different counterparties, the different baskets of financial guarantees must be aggregated in order to calculate the exposure limit of 20% for one single issuer. By way of derogation from this sub-paragraph, the SICAV may be fully guaranteed by various transferable securities and money market instruments issued or guaranteed by a Member State, one or more of its local authorities, a third country or a public international body to which one or more Member States belong. The SICAV must receive securities of at least six different issues, whereby the securities of a single issue should not represent more than 30 % of the net asset value of the relevant Sub-fund.
- f) The risks associated with the management of financial guarantees, such as operational and legal risks, must be identified, managed and reduced by means of the risk management process.
- g) The financial guarantees received in the form of transferred ownership must be held by the SICAV's custodian. With regard to other types of financial guarantee agreement, financial guarantees may be held by a third-party custodian that is subject to prudential supervision and has no link to the provider of the financial guarantees.
- h) The financial guarantees received must be such that they can be fully executed by the SICAV at any time and without needing to consult the counterparty or have its approval.
- i) Financial guarantees provided in a form other than cash may not be sold, reinvested or pledged.
- j) Financial guarantees received in cash should only be:
 - placed in custody with entities prescribed in Article 50(f) of Directive 2009/65/EC;
 - invested in high quality government bonds;
 - used for the purpose of reverse repurchase transactions, provided that these transactions are concluded with credit institutions subject to prudential supervision and that the SICAV can call up the total amount of liquid assets at any time, taking into account accrued interest;
 - invested in short-term money market UCITS.

The collateral received must take the form of cash and/or securities as listed in section II point b) of CSSF circular 08/356.

In the case of securities lending transactions, the collateral will be equal to at least 90% of the total value of the securities lent, in accordance with CSSF circular 08/356. No discount is applied to the collateral received.

Securities lending transactions

Each Sub-fund may enter into securities lending transactions subject to the following conditions and limits:

- Each Sub-fund may lend the securities it holds through a standardised lending system organised by a recognised securities clearing institution or by a financial institution subject to prudential supervision considered by the CSSF as equivalent to that laid down by Community legislation and specialised in this type of transaction.
- The borrower of the securities must also be subject to prudential monitoring considered by the CSSF as equivalent to that laid down in Community legislation. In the event that the aforementioned financial institution acts on its own account, it is considered as the counterparty to the securities lending transaction.
- As the Sub-funds are open for redemption, each Sub-fund concerned must be able to obtain at any time the termination of the contract and the return of the securities loaned. Otherwise, each Sub-fund must ensure that the extent of securities lending transactions is maintained at a level such that it is at all times possible to meet its obligation to repurchase the shares.
- Prior to or simultaneous with the transfer of the securities loaned, each Subfund must receive a guarantee in accordance with the requirements set out in the aforementioned circular 08/356. At the end of the lending agreement, return of the guarantee will take place simultaneously with or subsequent to the return of the securities loaned.

When collateral has been received by a Sub-fund in the form of cash for the purpose of guaranteeing the aforementioned transactions in accordance with the provisions of the aforementioned circular 08/356, such collateral may be reinvested in accordance with the Sub-fund's investment objective in (i) shares or units of money market UCIs calculating a daily net asset value and rated AAA or its equivalent, (ii) short-term bank deposits, (iii) money market instruments as defined in the aforementioned Grand-Ducal Regulation of 8 February 2008, (iv) in short-term bonds issued or guaranteed by a Member State of the European Union, Switzerland, Canada, Japan or the United States or by their local authorities or by supranational institutions and bodies of a Community, regional or global nature, (v) in bonds issued or guaranteed by first-class issuers offering adequate liquidity, and (vi) in reverse repurchase agreements in accordance with the procedures set out in point I (C) a) of the aforementioned circular 08/356. The reinvestment must be taken into account when calculating the SICAV's overall risk, particularly if it creates leverage.

Income generated from securities lending accrues to the relevant Sub-fund. Operating costs, which are deducted from the gross income generated by securities lending transactions, are in principle expressed as a fixed percentage of gross income and accrue to the SICAV's counterparty.

The SICAV's annual report provides information on the identity of the counterparty, whether this counterparty is a party related to the Management Company or the Custodian, as well as details of the income generated by securities lending transactions and the costs associated with these transactions.

As of the date of this Prospectus, no Sub-fund will enter into securities lending transactions. Should this change, this Prospectus will be updated.

Sale with right of repurchase transactions

Sale with right of repurchase transactions (opérations à réméré) involve the purchase and sale of securities with clauses reserving the right for the seller to repurchase the securities sold from the buyer at a price and time agreed between the two parties upon conclusion of the contract.

The SICAV may enter into sale with right of repurchase transactions either as the buyer or the seller.

As of the date of this Prospectus, no Sub-fund will enter into repurchase agreements. Should this change, this Prospectus will be updated.

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements

Repurchase and reverse repurchase agreements involve the purchase/sale of transferable securities or money market instruments in cash, and the simultaneous closure through a forward sale/purchase of these same transferable securities or money market instruments for a given price.

For some Sub-funds, reverse repurchase agreements will be the portfolio's main acquisition technique, in accordance with risk diversification rules set out in the Law of 2010. If a Sub-fund uses the reverse repurchase technique for its portfolio's acquisitions, a detailed description of the transaction, its valuation method and the risks associated with the transaction will be mentioned in the Sub-fund factsheet. A Sub-fund will only be permitted to build up a portfolio through reverse repurchase agreements if it acquires the legal ownership of the securities obtained and has a real and not just fictitious ownership right. The reverse repurchase agreement must be structured in such as the way that the SICAV is able to buy back its shares at all times. The terms of the reverse repurchase agreement will be described in more detail in the factsheets of Sub-funds using such.

In particular, some Sub-funds may enter into index-linked reverse repurchase agreements in which the SICAV purchases transferable securities or money market instruments in cash and simultaneously closes through a forward sale of these same transferable securities or money market instruments after a set period and for a given price, which will depend on the performance of the securities, instruments or index underlying the agreement in question.

As of the date of this Prospectus, no Sub-fund will enter into reverse repurchase and repurchase agreements. Should this change, this Prospectus will be updated.

Risk management

11.

The Management Company applies a risk management method that allows it to permanently measure and mitigate the risk attached to positions and the contribution these positions make to the portfolio's overall risk profile, and enables a precise, independent valuation of OTC derivative instruments. The risk management method used depends on each Sub-fund's specific investment policy. Unless otherwise specified in a Sub-fund's factsheet, the commitment approach will be used to measure overall risk.

7. RISKS ASSOCIATED WITH AN INVESTMENT IN THE SICAV

Before making a decision on whether to subscribe shares in the SICAV, investors should carefully read the information shown in the Prospectus and take into account their current or future personal financial and tax position. Investors should pay particularly close attention to the risks described in this section, the factsheets and the KIID. The risk factors described above may individually or collectively reduce the return on an investment in shares of the SICAV and may result in the partial or total loss on the investment in shares of the SICAV.

The SICAV draws investors' attention to the fact that they may only freely exercise their investors' rights directly against the SICAV (in particular the right to attend shareholders' meetings) if they appear under their own name in the SICAV's register of shareholders. In cases where an investor invests in the SICAV through an intermediary investing in the SICAV in its own name but on behalf of the investor, the investor will not necessarily be able to exercise certain shareholder rights directly against the SICAV. Investors are advised to inform themselves about their rights.

The value of an investment in shares of the SICAV may rise or fall and is not guaranteed in any way. Shareholders run the risk that the price at which they redeem their shares - the amount of any positive run-off on their shares - may be significantly lower than the price shareholders paid to subscribe or otherwise acquire shares in the SICAV.

An investment in shares of the SICAV is exposed to risks, which may include or be linked to equity, bond, currency, interest rate, credit, counterparty and volatility risks as well as political risks and the possibility of force majeure events. Each type of risk may also arise in combination with other risks.

Risk factors are not limited to those listed in the Prospectus and KIID. Other risk factors may exist, which investors must take into consideration, in line with their personal position and current and future individual circumstances.

Investors must also be fully aware of the risks associated with investment in shares of the SICAV and call on their legal, tax, financial and any other adviser, or their auditor, for more guidance on (i) the suitability of an investment in these shares taking into account their personal financial and tax position and individual circumstances, and (ii) the information contained in the Prospectus, factsheets and KIID, before deciding to invest.

The diversification of the Sub-funds' portfolios as well as the conditions and limits set out in sections 5. and 6. are intended to control and limit risks although without eliminating them. There can be no guarantee that a management strategy successfully used by the SICAV in the past will remain successful in future. Equally, there can be no guarantee that past performance of the SICAV's management strategy will be similar to future performance. The SICAV cannot therefore guarantee that the Sub-funds' objectives will be met or that investors will recover all of their initial investment.

Market risk

This is a general risk that affects all types of investment. Changes in the price of transferable securities and other instruments are primarily determined by the performance of financial markets and changes in the position of issuers, who are themselves affected by the global economic environment as well as economic and political conditions in their home countries.

Equity market risk

Risks associated with investments in equities (and similar instruments) include significant price fluctuations, bad news on the issuer or market, and whether equities are subordinate to bonds issued by the same company. Moreover, fluctuations are often amplified in the short term. The risk of one or more companies declining or not progressing may have a negative effect on the portfolio's overall performance at a given moment.

Some Sub-funds may invest in companies making an initial public offering. The risk in this case is that the price of the new share will be highly volatile due to factors such as the absence of a previous public market, unseasonal transactions, the limited number of tradable securities and the lack of information on the issuer.

Sub-funds investing in growth stocks may be more volatile than the market as a whole and may react differently to economic, political, market and issuer-specific developments. Growth stocks have traditionally been more volatile than other securities, especially over very short periods. Such stocks may also be more expensive - relative to their earnings - than the market in general. As a result, growth stocks may react more violently to changes in earnings growth.

Risk associated with investments in bonds, debt securities, fixed income products (including high yield securities), convertible bonds and convertible contingency bonds

For Sub-funds that invest in bonds or other debt securities, the value of these investments will depend on market interest rates as well as liquidity considerations and the issuers' credit rating. The net asset value of a Sub-fund investing in debt securities will fluctuate in line with interest rates, issuers' perceived creditworthiness, market liquidity and exchange rates (if the investment currency is different from the reference currency of the Sub-fund holding this investment). Some Sub-funds may invest in high yield debt securities for which the level of income may be relatively high (compared with investment grade debt securities); however, the risk of impairment and capital loss on such debt securities will be higher than on debt securities with lower yields.

Investments in convertible bonds are sensitive to fluctuations in the price of underlying shares (the "equity component" of convertible bonds) but offer a degree of protection for some of the capital (the "bond floor" of the convertible bond). The bigger the equity component, the lower the capital protection. Consequently, a convertible bond whose market value has increased considerably following a rise in the underlying share price will have a risk profile closer to that of an equity. However, a convertible bond whose market value has fallen to the level of its bond floor following a drop in the underlying share price will, beyond this level, have a risk profile close to that of a traditional bond.

Like other types of bonds, convertible bonds are subject to the risk that the issuer may not be able to meet its obligation to pay interest and/or repay the principal on maturity (credit risk). If the market believes that this risk is more likely to materialise for a given issuer, there may be a significant fall in the market value of the bond and therefore in the protection offered by the bond component of the convertible bond. Bonds are also exposed to the risk of a drop in their market value following an increase in benchmark interest rates (interest rate risk).

The contingent convertible bond is a hybrid debt instrument designed to absorb losses. This loan has a very high level of subordination, depending on specific triggering criteria determined by contract or the regulator (such as, for example, a deterioration in the issuer's capital adequacy ratio). If the triggering event occurs, the subscriber of this type of bond is faced with the following choices: convert his contingent convertible bond into shares or suffer a partial or total capital loss.

Risk associated with investment in emerging markets

Missed payments and defaults in developing countries are due to various factors such as political instability, poor economic management, insufficient currency reserves, capital flight, internal conflicts and a lack of political determination to continue servicing previously contracted debts.

Corporate issuers' ability to meet their obligations may also be affected by these factors. Furthermore, these issuers suffer the effects of government authorities' decrees, laws and regulations. Examples include amendments to foreign exchange controls and to the legal and regulatory system, expropriation and nationalisation, tax hikes or new taxes such as withholding tax.

Transaction settlement or clearing systems are often not as well organised as in developed markets. This creates a risk that the settlement or clearing of transactions will be delayed or cancelled. It may be that market practices require a transaction to be paid before transferable securities or other instruments bought have been received, or the delivery of transferable securities or other instruments sold before payment has been received. In such circumstances, default by the counterparty through which the transaction is executed or settled may result in losses for the Sub-fund investing in these markets.

Uncertainty surrounding a murky legal environment or the inability to establish clear legal and ownership rights is another key factor. Then there is the unreliability of news sources in these countries, failure to comply with international accounting standards and the absence of financial or trade controls.

At present, investments in Russia are subject to greater risk attached to the ownership and holding of Russian transferable securities. It may be that transferable securities may only be owned or held indirectly through the issuer or registrar (neither of which is an agent of or has any responsibility to the custodian). No certificate representing ownership of transferable securities issued by Russian companies will be kept by the custodian, local correspondent of the custodian or a central custodian. Due to these market practices and in the absence of effective regulations and controls, the SICAV may lose its status as owner of transferable securities issued by Russian companies as a result of fraud, theft, destruction, negligence, loss or disappearance of the transferable securities in question. Also due to market practices, Russian transferable securities may have to be deposited with Russian institutions, which do not always have adequate insurance to cover risks of losses arising from the theft, destruction, loss or disappearance of these deposited securities.

Risks related to investments in China

Political, economic and social risks

Investments in the People's Republic of China ("China") are sensitive to any political, social and diplomatic events that may occur in or concerning China. Investors' attention is drawn to the fact that any change in China's policy could have a negative impact on the securities markets in China as well as on the performance of the relevant Sub-fund(s).

Economic risks

China's economy differs from that of most developed countries in many respects, including government intervention in its economy, the level of development, growth rate and exchange controls. The regulatory and legal framework applicable to capital markets and enterprises in China is not as developed as that of developed countries.

The Chinese economy has grown rapidly in recent years. However, this growth may not last, and some sectors of the Chinese economy may not benefit from it. All of this could adversely affect the performance of the relevant Sub-fund(s).

Legal and regulatory risk

China's legal system is based on written laws and regulations. Nevertheless, many of these laws and regulations have yet to be tested and their enforcement remains unclear. In particular, Chinese regulations governing the foreign exchange market in China are relatively new and their application is uncertain. These regulations also give the China Securities Regulatory Commission and the State Administration of Foreign Exchange (SAFE) the power to interpret them at their own discretion, which could increase uncertainty about their application.

Risks related to the renminbi

The renminbi ("RMB") is currently not a freely convertible currency, as it is subject to exchange controls and tax policies and repatriation restrictions imposed by the Chinese government. There are currently no repatriation limits that affect a Sub-fund. If such policies were to change in the future, the position of the Sub-fund or the shareholders could be affected. There can be no assurance that the RMB will not be subject to a devaluation, in which case the value of their investments will be affected. If investors wish or intend to convert redemption proceeds or dividends paid by the Sub-fund or sales proceeds into a different currency, they will be exposed to the corresponding currency risk and may suffer losses as a result of such conversion, together with associated fees and commissions.

Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect

All the Sub-funds that may invest in China may invest in Chinese A-shares through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect programmes, subject to applicable regulatory limits. The Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect programme is a securities trading and clearing programme established by Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited ("HKEx"), Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited ("HKSCC"), Shanghai Stock Exchange ("SSE") and China Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation Limited ("ChinaClear") to provide reciprocal access to stock markets between mainland China and Hong Kong. This programme allows foreign investors to trade certain Chinese A-shares listed on the SSE through their Hong Kong-based brokers. The Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect is a similar cross-border investment channel, but it connects the Shenzhen Stock Exchange to the HKEx. Once again, it provides reciprocal access to stock markets between mainland China and Hong Kong, and broadens the range of Chinese Ashares that international investors can trade.

Sub-funds wishing to invest in the domestic stock markets of the PRC may make use of the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect programmes, in addition to the QFII and RQFII programmes, and are therefore exposed to the following additional risks:

<u>General risk:</u> Current regulations have not yet been tested and are subject to change. There is no certainty as to how they will be applied, which could adversely affect the Sub-funds. The programmes require the use of new computer systems that may be exposed to operational risk due to their crossborder nature. In the event of a malfunction of the systems in question, operations in the Hong Kong, Shanghai and Shenzhen markets through the programmes could be disrupted.

<u>Clearing and settlement risk:</u> The HKSCC and ChinaClear have established clearing links and each will become a participant of the other to facilitate the clearing and settlement of cross-border trades. For cross-border transactions on a marketplace, the clearing house for that marketplace will, on the one hand, clear and settle with its own clearing participants and, on the other hand, will undertake to discharge the clearing and settlement obligations of its participants with the counterparty's clearing house.

<u>Bare ownership/usufruct:</u> Where securities are held across borders, there are specific risks of bare ownership/usufruct inherent in the mandatory requirements of the local Central Securities Depositories, HKSCC and ChinaClear.

As in other emerging and less developed markets, the legislative framework is just beginning to develop the concept of bare ownership and usufruct or rights over securities. In addition, HKSCC, as a "nominee holder", does not guarantee ownership of securities acquired through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect programmes and is not obligated to enforce ownership or other rights of ownership on behalf of beneficial owners. Accordingly, the courts may consider that any nominee or custodian acting as a registered holder of Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect securities has full ownership of such securities and that such securities form part of the pool of assets of such entity available for distribution to creditors of such entity and/or that a beneficial owner may have no rights against such entity. Consequently, the Sub-funds and the Custodian cannot guarantee that the Sub-funds will retain ownership of or entitlement to such securities.

To the extent that HKSCC is deemed to perform custodial functions in respect of assets held through it, it should be noted that the Custodian and the Sub-funds will have no legal relationship with HKSCC and no direct legal recourse against HKSCC in the event that the Sub-funds suffer losses as a result of the performance or insolvency of HKSCC.

In the event of a default by ChinaClear, HKSCC's obligations under its market agreements with members will be limited to assisting members in the processing of claims. HKSCC will act in good faith to recover outstanding shares and funds from ChinaClear using the legal means at its disposal or by winding up ChinaClear. In this case, the Sub-funds may not fully recover their losses or their Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect securities and the recovery process may also be delayed.

<u>Operational risk:</u> HKSCC provides clearing, settlement, nominee and other related services for orders executed by Hong Kong market operators. The PRC regulations that provide for certain restrictions on selling and buying will apply to all market participants.

<u>Quotas</u>: The programme is subject to quotas which may limit the ability of the Sub-funds to invest rapidly in Chinese A-shares through the programme.

Investor compensation: The Sub-funds will not benefit from local investor compensation schemes.

Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect will only operate on days when both the Chinese and Hong Kong markets are open and the banks of both markets are open on the corresponding settlement days. From time to time, the Sub-funds may not be able to buy or sell Chinese A-shares in the PRC market on a normal trading day. The Sub-funds may be exposed to the risk of fluctuations in the price of Chinese A-shares when trading through the Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect or Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect programmes does not take place as a result.

Concentration risk

Some Sub-funds may concentrate their investments in one or more countries, regions, sectors, asset classes, types of instrument or currencies in such a way as that they are more affected by any economic, social, political or tax events involving the countries, regions, sectors, asset classes, types of instrument or currencies concerned.

Interest rate risk

The value of an investment may be affected by interest rate fluctuations. Interest rates may be influenced by a number of factors or events such as monetary policy, discount rate and inflation. Investors' attention is drawn to the fact that a rise in interest rates reduces the value of investments in bonds and debt securities.

Credit risk

This is the risk that may result from the downgrading of an issuer of bonds or debt securities where this could reduce the value of investments. The risk is linked to an issuer's ability to honour its debts.

The downgrading of an issue or issuer may lead to a fall in the value of the debt securities concerned and in which the Sub-fund has invested. Bonds or debt securities issued by organisations with a low rating are generally considered to present a higher credit risk and greater probability of issuer default than those from issuers with a higher rating. If the issuer of bonds or debt securities finds itself in financial or economic difficulty, the value of the bonds or debt securities (which may fall to zero) and payments made in virtue of these bonds or debt securities (which may fall to zero) could be affected.

Currency risk

If a Sub-fund includes assets denominated in currencies other than its benchmark currency, it may be affected by any fluctuation in the rate of exchange between its benchmark currency and these other currencies or by a possible amendment to foreign exchange controls. If the currency in which a security is denominated appreciates against the Sub-fund's benchmark currency, the security's equivalent value in this benchmark currency will rise. Conversely, a depreciation of this same currency would reduce the equivalent value of the security.

Where the Sub-fund hedges currency risk, the complete effectiveness of these transactions cannot be guaranteed.

Liquidity risk

There is a risk that investments in Sub-funds will become illiquid if the market is too tight (often reflected in a very wide bid-ask spread or major price changes); or if their rating is downgraded or the economic situation deteriorates, then these investments may not be able to be sold or bought quickly enough to prevent or minimise Sub-fund losses. Lastly, there is a risk that securities traded in a narrow market segment, such as the small caps market, will be subject to high price volatility.

Counterparty risk

When agreeing OTC contracts, the SICAV may find itself exposed to risks associated with the solvency of its counterparties and their ability to comply with the terms of these contracts. The SICAV may, for example, agree futures, options and swaps or use other derivative techniques that each pass on a risk of the counterparty failing to respect its commitments under each contract.

Risk associated with derivative instruments

Under the investment policy described in each Sub-fund's factsheet, the SICAV may use derivative instruments. These may be used not only for hedging purposes but also to optimise returns as an integral part of the investment strategy. The use of derivative instruments may be limited by market conditions and applicable regulations, and may incur risks and costs to which the Sub-fund in question would not have been exposed if these instruments were not used. In particular, risks inherent to the use of options, foreign currency contracts, swaps, futures and options include: (a) the fact that success depends on the managers' and sub-managers' accurate analysis of changes in interest rates, the price of transferable securities and/or money market instruments and foreign exchange markets; (b) the imperfect correlation between the price of options, futures and related options on the one hand, and changes in the price of transferable securities, money market instruments and hedged currencies on the other; (c) the fact that the skills required to use these derivative instruments differ from those needed to select portfolio securities; (d) the possibility of an illiquid secondary market for a particular instrument at any given moment and (e) the risk of a Subfund being unable to buy or sell a portfolio security during periods of strength or having to sell a portfolio asset in adverse conditions. When a Sub-fund enters into a swap transaction, it exposes itself to counterparty risk. The use of derivative instruments also incurs a risk associated with their leverage. This leverage is generated by investing a modest amount of capital in purchasing derivative instruments relative to the cost of purchasing the underlying assets directly. The greater the leverage, the more the price of the derivative instrument will change if the price of the underlying asset fluctuates (relative to the subscription price established in the derivative instrument's terms and conditions). These instruments' potential and their risks are therefore greater as leverage increases. Lastly, there is no guarantee that the stated objective will be achieved through these derivative instruments.

Taxation

Investors must be aware that (i) proceeds from the sale of securities on certain markets or the receipt of dividends or other income may be subject to taxes, levies, duties or other charges imposed by the

authorities of this market, including withholding tax and/or that (ii) the Sub-fund's investments may be subject to specific levies or charges imposed by the authorities of certain markets. Tax legislation and industry standards in some countries in which the Sub-fund invests or may invest are not clearly established. It is therefore possible that current interpretation of legislation or understanding of a common practice may change or that legislation may be amended retrospectively. As such, the Subfund may be subject to additional taxation in such a country, even though this taxation was not foreseeable at the time of this Prospectus or on the date on which investments were made, valued or sold.

Risk associated with investment in units of UCIs

Investments by the SICAV in units of UCIs (including investments by some Sub-funds of the SICAV in units of other Sub-funds of the SICAV) expose the SICAV to risks associated with the financial instruments that these UCIs hold in their portfolios and which are described above. However, some risks are specific to the SICAV holding units of UCIs. Some UCIs may generate leverage either through the use of derivative instruments or by borrowing. Leverage increases the price volatility of these UCIs and therefore the risk of capital loss. Most UCIs also include the possibility of suspending redemptions in exceptional circumstances. Investments in units of UCIs may then present a greater liquidity risk than a direct investment in a portfolio of transferable securities. However, investment in units of UCIs gives the SICAV flexible, effective access to different professional management styles and a broader range of investments. A Sub-fund that invests mainly through a UCI will ensure that its UCI portfolio has suitable liquidity characteristics to allow it to respect its own redemption obligations.

Investment in units of UCIs may mean doubling up certain charges in the sense that, as well as the charges taken by the Sub-fund in which an investor has invested, the investor in question must cover a percentage of the charges taken from the UCI in which the Sub-fund has invested. The SICAV offers investors a choice of portfolios and may present a different degree of risk and therefore, in theory, long-term total return prospects commensurate with the degree of risk accepted.

Investors will find the degree of risk for each available equity class in the KIID.

The higher the level of risk, the longer the investment horizon should be and the more willing the investor should be to accept the risk of a significant capital loss.

Risks related to investment in smaller companies

A Sub-fund that invests in smaller companies is likely to fluctuate more in value than other Subfunds. Smaller companies may offer greater opportunities for capital appreciation, but may also involve certain special risks. Smaller companies generally offer a more limited product range, have limited financial resources or depend on a small, inexperienced management group. Securities of smaller companies may, particularly during periods of declining markets, become less liquid and there may be some short-term price volatility and wide spreads between transaction prices. Smaller companies may also trade in OTC or regional markets and have limited liquidity. As a result, unlike larger companies, investments in smaller companies may be more vulnerable to adverse developments and, as a result, a Sub-fund may find it more difficult to establish or liquidate its securities at market price. On the other hand, access to information on smaller companies may be more complicated and more time may be required for the price of securities to reflect the true value of the issuer's potential or assets.

Risks associated with investing in accordance with environmental, social and governance criteria

Investments made in accordance with environmental, social and governance criteria are selected or excluded on the basis of financial and non-financial criteria. Sub-funds investing in accordance with such criteria may underperform the market or other funds not following such criteria in selecting their investments. The Sub-funds may sell their assets for environmental, social and governance reasons and not for financial reasons. There is no guarantee that the investments made by the Sub-funds reflect the beliefs or values of individual investors, while investments made on the basis of environmental, social and governance criteria are subject to a degree of subjectivity.

Sustainability risk

Sustainability risk means an environmental, social or governance event or condition which, if it occurs, could potentially or actually have a material adverse impact on the value of an investment. Sustainability risks may either represent a risk in their own right or have an impact on other risks and may contribute significantly to risks, such as market risks, operational risks, liquidity risks or counterparty risks.

Sustainability risks can have an impact on the long-term performance of investors. Sustainability risk assessment is complex and may be based on environmental, social and governance data that are difficult to obtain and may be incomplete, out of date or otherwise incorrect. There is no guarantee that the data obtained will be correctly evaluated. The impacts resulting from the occurrence of sustainability risks can be numerous and can vary depending on the specific risk, region, sector and type of assets. In general, when a sustainability risk occurs, there will be a negative impact on the asset in question, and potentially a total loss of value leading to an impact on the net asset value of the Sub-fund.

Transparency of negative sustainability impacts

In the current context, unless further information is published on the website, the Management Company does not take into account the transparency principles relating to negative sustainability impacts. The main reason for this is the lack of information and data available to properly assess these main negative impacts. In the event that this changes, the Prospectus will be updated on this point in the next update.

8. MANAGEMENT COMPANY

Pursuant to a management company agreement between the SICAV and the Management Company (the "Services Agreement"), the Management Company has been appointed as the Management Company of the SICAV in accordance with the Law.

Under the terms of this agreement, the Management Company, subject to the supervision and control of the Board of Directors of the SICAV, will be responsible for the day-to-day provision of investment management services, administration services, registrar and transfer agency services, and marketing, principal distribution and commercial services relating to all the Sub-funds. The Management Company may also delegate all or part of these functions to third parties, subject to the approval of the SICAV and the CSSF.

The Management Company's liability will not be affected by the fact that it has delegated its functions and obligations to third parties. The Management Company has delegated the following functions to third parties: investment management, registrar and transfer agency services, and administration and marketing.

The Management Company was incorporated on 23 October 2003 in the form of a public limited company (société anonyme) under the laws of Luxembourg for an indefinite period and is registered with the Luxembourg Trade and Companies Register (RCS) under number B 96744. Its registered office is located at 19, rue de Bitbourg, L-1273. The articles of association, as amended, have been filed with the RCS and were published in June 2017 in the Mémorial C, its fully paid-up share capital amounts to EUR 2,450,000.00. The names and sales documents of all managed funds are available at the domicile of the Management Company and on the website https://www.waystone.com.

The Management Company shall at all times act in the best interests of the Shareholders and in accordance with the provisions and stipulations defined respectively by the Law, the Prospectus and its Articles of Association.

The Management Company Services Agreement has been entered into for an unlimited duration and may be terminated by either party, upon three months' written notice, or immediately by written notification in the specific circumstances provided for in this agreement.

The Manager will receive a Commission as defined in section "20. Charges".

The Management Company has established a remuneration policy in accordance with Directive 2014/91/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 23 July 2014 amending Directive 2009/65/EC on the coordination of laws, regulations and administrative provisions relating to

undertakings for collective investment in transferable securities (the "UCITS V Directive").

The remuneration policy establishes the remuneration principles that apply to management, to all employees whose professional activities have a substantial impact on the risk profiles of the Management Company, as well as to all employees who exercise an independent control function.

The Management Company applies the principles mentioned below in a manner and to an extent proportionate to its size, its internal organisation and the nature, scope and complexity of its activities:

(i) The remuneration policy is compatible with sound and effective risk management, promotes it and does not encourage risk-taking that is incompatible with the risk profiles and coordinated Articles of Association of the SICAV;

(ii) The performance evaluation, if and insofar as it applies, is part of a multi-year framework appropriate to the holding period recommended for Shareholders of the Company managed by the Management Company in order to ensure that it reflects the long-term performance of the SICAV and its investment risks and that the actual payment of performance-related remuneration components is allocated across the same period;

(iii) The remuneration policy is consistent with the economic strategy, objectives, values and interests of the Management Company and of the SICAV and the Shareholders of the SICAV, and includes measures to avoid conflicts of interest.

(iv) An appropriate balance is struck between the fixed and variable components of total remuneration. The fixed component represents a sufficiently high share of total remuneration so that a fully flexible policy can be exercised in respect of variable remuneration components, including the possibility of not paying any variable component;

The details of the remuneration policy in force include, among other things, a description of how remuneration and benefits are calculated, the identity of the persons responsible for the allocation of remuneration and benefits and the remuneration of the Remuneration Committee. They are available at https://www.waystone.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Waystone-Mgt-Co-IE-Limited-Remuneration-Policy.pdf in electronic format or free of charge in paper format on request.

9. DISTRIBUTION COORDINATOR

The Management Company has appointed Funds for Good S.A. as distribution coordinator (the "Distribution Coordinator"). The Distribution Coordinator will be responsible for recommending the appointment of distributors to the Management Company for the purpose of placing the shares of the Sub-funds of the SICAV. The Distribution Coordinator will be remunerated from the distribution fee (the "Distribution Fee") which will be disclosed in the factsheets of the Sub-funds. Distributors, Business providers and other intermediaries will be paid by the Distribution Coordinator from the Distribution Coordinator Commission. The Distribution Coordinator will not directly offer the shares of the Sub-funds for subscription.

10. INVESTMENT ADVISORS

The Management Company or the Managers may be assisted by one or more investment advisors ("Investment Advisers") whose business is to advise the SICAV on its investment policy.

The name and a description of the Investment Advisors and their remuneration are set out in the factsheets of the Sub-funds.

11. CUSTODIAN

Pursuant to a custodian agreement between the SICAV, the Management Company and the BANQUE DE LUXEMBOURG (the "Custodian Agreement"), the latter has been appointed as custodian of the SICAV (the "Custodian") for (i) the safekeeping of the SICAV's assets (ii) the monitoring of liquidity, (iii) control functions and (iv) any other service that may be agreed at any time and reflected in the Custodian Agreement.

The Custodian is a credit institution established in Luxembourg, whose registered office is located at 14, boulevard Royal, L-2449 Luxembourg, and which is registered with the Luxembourg Trade and

Companies Register under number B 5310. The Custodian is authorised to conduct banking activities under the amended Luxembourg law of 5 April 1993 on the financial sector, including, inter alia, custody, fund administration and related services.

Responsibilities of the Custodian

The Custodian is responsible for the safekeeping of the assets of the SICAV. For financial instruments that can be held in accordance with Article 22.5(a) of Directive 2009/65/EC as amended ("Assets Held in Custody"), they may be held either directly by the Custodian or, to the extent permitted by applicable laws and regulations, by other credit institutions or financial intermediaries acting as its correspondents, sub-custodian banks, nominees, agents or delegates. The Custodian also ensures that the SICAV's cash flows are properly monitored.

In addition, the Custodian shall:

- ensure that the sale, issue, redemption, repayment and cancellation of the shares of the SICAV are carried out in accordance with the Law of 2010 and the Articles of Association;
- (ii) ensure that the value of the shares of the SICAV is calculated in accordance with the Law of 2010 and the Articles of Association ;
- (iii) carry out the instructions of the SICAV, unless they are contrary to the Law of 2010 or the Articles of Association;
- (iv) ensure that in transactions involving the assets of the SICAV, the consideration is remitted to the SICAV within the usual time limits;
- (v) ensure that the income of the SICAV is allocated in accordance with the Law of 2010 and the Articles of Association.

Delegation of duties

Pursuant to the provisions of the Law of 2010 and the Custodian Agreement, the Custodian delegates the safekeeping of the SICAV's Assets Held in Custody to one or more third party delegates appointed by the Custodian.

The Custodian will exercise care and diligence in the selection, appointment and monitoring of third party delegates to ensure that each third party delegate meets the requirements of the Law of 2010. The Custodian's liability is not affected by the fact that it has entrusted all or part of the assets of the SICAV in its custody to these delegated third parties.

In the event of a loss of an Asset Held in Custody, the Custodian shall return a financial instrument of the same type or the corresponding amount to the SICAV without undue delay, unless such loss results from an external event beyond the reasonable control of the Custodian the consequences of which would have been unavoidable despite all reasonable efforts to avoid them. Under the Law of 2010, where the law of a third country requires that certain financial instruments of the SICAV be held by a local entity and there is no local entity in that third country that is subject to effective prudential regulation and supervision (including capital requirements), the delegation of the tasks of custody of these financial instruments to such a local entity is subject to (i) an instruction by the SICAV to the Custodian to delegate the custody of these financial instruments to such a local entity. and (ii) on condition that the SICAV's investors are duly informed, prior to their investment, of the fact that such delegation is made necessary by the legal constraints of the legislation of the third country, as well as of the circumstances justifying the delegation and the risks inherent in such delegation. It is the responsibility of the SICAV and/or the Management Company to fulfil condition (ii) above, it being understood that the Custodian may validly refuse to accept the financial instruments concerned for safekeeping pending receipt of both the instruction referred to under (i) above and written confirmation from the SICAV and/or the Management Company that condition (ii) above has been fulfilled.

Conflicts of interest

In the performance of its duties and obligations as Custodian of the SICAV, the Custodian shall act honestly, loyally, professionally and independently, in the exclusive interest of the SICAV and its shareholders.

As a full-service bank, the Custodian is authorised to provide the SICAV, directly or indirectly, through parties related or unrelated to the Custodian, with a wide range of banking services in addition to the Custodian's services.

The provision of additional banking services and/or the relationship between the Custodian and the SICAV's key service providers may give rise to potential conflicts of interest with regard to the Custodian's duties and obligations vis-à-vis the SICAV. Such potential conflicts of interest may arise in particular from the following situations (the term "CM-CIC Group" designating the banking group to which the Custodian belongs):

- the Custodian and Manager BLI BANQUE DE LUXEMBOURG INVESTMENTS S.A. (the "Manager") are part of the CM-CIC Group and certain employees of the CM-CIC Group are members of the board of directors of the Manager;
- the Custodian holds a significant stake in EFA as a shareholder and certain members of staff of the CM-CIC Group are members of EFA's Board of Directors;
- the Custodian delegates the custody of the SICAV's financial instruments to a certain number of sub-custodians;
- the Custodian may provide additional banking services in addition to the custodian services and/or act as the SICAV's counterparty for OTC derivatives transactions.

The following conditions should help to mitigate the risk of occurrence and impact of conflicts of interest that may arise from the above situations.

The members of the CM-CIC Group's staff with positions on the Board of Directors of the Manager do not interfere with the performance of the Manager's duties with respect to the SICAV, which remains in the hands of the management committee and the staff of the Investment Manager. The Manager, in the performance of its duties and tasks, operates with its own staff, in accordance with the service agreements it has entered into with the SICAV, its own procedures and rules of conduct and within its own control framework.

The CM-CIC Group staff members present on EFA's Board of Directors do not interfere in the dayto-day management of EFA, which remains in the hands of EFA's Board of Directors and staff. EFA, in the exercise of its functions and tasks, operates with its own staff, according to its own procedures and rules of conduct and within its own control framework.

The process of selecting and supervising sub-custodians is carried out in accordance with the Law of 2010 and is separated, both from a functional and hierarchical point of view, from any other business relationships that do not form part of the sub-custody of the SICAV's financial instruments and are liable to distort the performance of the Custodian's selection and supervision process. The risk of conflicts of interest arising and the impact of such conflicts is further mitigated by the fact that, with the exception of a very specific class of financial instruments, none of the sub-custodians used by Banque de Luxembourg to hold the SICAV's financial instruments are members of the CM-CIC Group. There is an exception for units held by the SICAV in French investment funds because, for operational reasons, the negotiation process is handled by and custody delegated to Banque Fédérative du Crédit Mutuel en France ("BFCM") as a specialised intermediary. BFCM is a member of the CM-CIC Group. BFCM, in the exercise of its functions and tasks, operates with its own staff, according to its own procedures and rules of conduct and within its own control framework.

The provision of additional banking services by the Custodian to the SICAV complies with the applicable legal and regulatory provisions and rules of conduct (including best execution policies) and the performance of such additional banking services and the performance of the Custodian's duties are separated, both functionally and hierarchically.

If, notwithstanding the aforementioned conditions, a conflict of interest arises at the level of the Custodian, the Custodian shall at all times ensure that it fulfils its duties and obligations under the Custodian Agreement entered into with the SICAV and shall act accordingly. If, despite all the measures taken, the Custodian, having regard to its duties and obligations under the Custodian Agreement entered into with the SICAV, is unable to resolve a conflict of interest that may significantly and adversely affect the SICAV or its shareholders, it will inform the SICAV, which will take the necessary measures.

As the financial landscape and the organisational structure of the SICAV may change over time, the nature and scope of possible conflicts of interest and the conditions under which conflicts of interest may arise at the level of the Custodian may also change.

In the event that the organisational structure of the SICAV or the scope of the Custodian services provided to the SICAV undergoes a material change, such change will be subject to the evaluation and approval of the internal acceptance committee of the Custodian. The internal acceptance committee of the Custodian will, inter alia, assess the impact of such changes on the nature and extent of any potential conflicts of interest with the Custodian's functions and obligations to the SICAV and will evaluate the necessary mitigation measures.

Shareholders of the SICAV may contact the Custodian at its registered office for any information concerning a possible update of the above-mentioned principles.

Miscellaneous

The Custodian or the SICAV may terminate the Custodian Agreement at any time upon at least three (3) months' written notice (or sooner in the event of certain breaches of the Custodian Agreement, including the insolvency of one of the parties to the Custodian Agreement). As from the date of termination, the Custodian will no longer act as custodian of the SICAV within the meaning of the Law of 2010 and will therefore no longer assume any of the duties and obligations and will no longer be subject to the liability regime imposed by the Law of 2010 in respect of any services it may provide after the date of termination.

Updated information on the list of third party delegates will be made available to investors at http://www.banquedeluxembourg.com/fr/bank/corporate/informations-legales.

As Custodian, BANQUE DE LUXEMBOURG will carry out the obligations and duties prescribed by the Law of 2010 and the applicable regulatory provisions.

The Custodian has no decision-making powers and no obligation to provide advice concerning the organisation and investments of the SICAV. The Custodian is a service provider of the SICAV and is not responsible for the preparation or content of this Prospectus and, accordingly, assumes no responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the information contained in this Prospectus or for the validity of the structure and investments of the SICAV.

Investors are invited to consult the Custodian Agreement in order to gain a better understanding of the limitations of the duties and responsibilities of the Custodian.

12. DESCRIPTION OF SHARES, SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND DISTRIBUTION POLICY

The SICAV's capital is equal to the sum of the various Sub-funds' net assets.

Share classes available to subscribers

The shares will be issued in the form of registered shares registered in the name of the investor in the register of shareholders. The shares may also be registered with a clearing and settlement system (clearing system).

Shares may be issued in fractions of up to one thousandth of a share.

Characteristics of the shares available to subscribers

The following share classes may be issued for the Sub-funds currently open to subscribers:

- Class R Dis shares: distribution shares denominated in the reference currency of the Sub-fund, which, in principle, entitle the holder to receive a dividend. The factsheets of the Sub-funds may specify a minimum initial investment amount. The Board of Directors reserves the right to depart from this principle provided that it treats shareholders equally.
- Class R Acc shares: capitalisation shares denominated in the reference currency of the Subfund, which, in principle, do not entitle the holder to receive a dividend, but the holder's share of the amount to be distributed is capitalised in the Sub-fund to which these capitalisation shares belong. The factsheets of the Sub-funds may specify a minimum initial investment amount. The Board of Directors reserves the right to depart from this principle provided that it treats shareholders equally.
- Class I Acc shares: capitalisation shares reserved for institutional investors within the meaning of Article 174 of the Law of 2010, which, in principle, do not confer on their holder the right to receive a dividend, but the holder's share of the amount to be distributed is capitalised in the Sub-fund to which these capitalisation shares belong. The factsheets of the Sub-funds may specify a

minimum initial investment amount. The Board of Directors reserves the right to depart from this principle provided that it treats shareholders equally.

- Class I Dis shares: distribution shares reserved for institutional investors within the meaning of Article 174 of the Law of 2010, which, in principle, confer on their holder the right to receive a dividend. The factsheets of the Sub-funds may specify a minimum initial investment amount. The Board of Directors reserves the right to depart from this principle provided that it treats shareholders equally.
- Class C Dis shares: distribution shares reserved for (a) financial intermediaries who, due to regulatory requirements, are not permitted to accept and retain retrocessions from third parties (within the European Union and other countries of the European Economic Area (once the relevant change to the European Economic Area Agreement has taken place), including financial intermediaries providing independent investment advice and discretionary portfolio management services) and (b) intermediaries who, on the basis of tariff agreements with their clients, are not authorised to accept and/or retain retrocessions from third parties. The factsheets of the Subfunds may specify a minimum initial investment amount. The Board of Directors reserves the right to depart from this principle provided that it treats shareholders equally.
- Class C Acc shares: Capitalisation shares reserved for (a) financial intermediaries who, due to regulatory requirements, are not permitted to accept and retain retrocessions from third parties (within the European Union and other countries of the European Economic Area (once the relevant change to the European Economic Area Agreement has taken place), including financial intermediaries providing independent investment advice and discretionary portfolio management services) and (b) intermediaries who, on the basis of tariff agreements with their clients, are not authorised to accept and/or retain retrocessions from third parties. The factsheets of the Sub-funds may specify a minimum initial investment amount. The Board of Directors reserves the right to depart from this principle provided that it treats shareholders equally.
- Class F Acc shares: capitalisation shares denominated in the reference currency of the Subfund and reserved for investors specifically approved by the Board of Directors of the SICAV. The terms and conditions of subscription for these shares are left to the discretion of the members of the Board of Directors of the SICAV.
- Class S Dis shares: distribution shares denominated in the reference currency of the Sub-fund and available to all types of investors. This share class will only be available until the day on which the sum of its net asset value and the net asset value of the "S Acc" share class of the same Subfund reaches or exceeds EUR 50 million or any other amount defined by the Board of Directors. The subscription period for such shares may also be limited in time as further specified in the Appendix relating to each Sub-fund.
- Class S Acc shares: Capitalisation shares denominated in the reference currency of the Subfund and available to all types of investors. This share class will only be available until the day on which the sum of its net asset value and the net asset value of the "S Dis" share class of the same Sub-fund reaches or exceeds EUR 50 million or any other amount defined by the Board of Directors. The subscription period for such shares may also be limited in time as further specified in the Appendix relating to each Sub-fund.

Dividends payable in virtue of any distribution class may, at the request of the shareholder concerned, be paid in cash or through the award of new shares of the class concerned.

Details of the share classes available for each Sub-fund are provided in the factsheet of each Sub-fund.

13. OBLIGATIONS AND CONSTRAINTS RELATED TO FATCA

The Foreign Account Tax Compliance Act, part of the Hiring Incentives to Restore Employment Act of 2010, entered into force in the United States in 2010. It obliges financial institutions outside the United States ("foreign financial institutions" or "FFIs") to transmit information on "Financial Accounts" held by "US Persons" directly or indirectly to the US tax authority, the Internal Revenue Service ("IRS"), each year. A 30 % withholding tax is levied on the US source income of an FFI if it fails to meet this requirement. On 28 March 2014, the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg concluded a Model 1 Intergovernmental Agreement ("IGA") with the United States of America and a Memorandum of Understanding in respect thereof. Consequently, the SICAV must comply with this IGA concluded by Luxembourg, as the IGA was transposed into Luxembourg law by the law of 24 July 2015 relating to

FATCA (the "FATCA Law") and not directly comply with the regulations of the US Treasury in charge of implementing FATCA. Under the FATCA Law and the IGA concluded by Luxembourg, the SICAV may be required to collect information to identify its direct and indirect shareholders who are US Persons for FATCA purposes (the "FATCA Reportable Accounts"). Such information on FATCA reportable accounts provided to the SICAV will be communicated to the Luxembourg tax authorities, which will exchange information automatically with the United States government in accordance with Article 28 of the convention between the Government of the United States of America and the government of the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg for the avoidance of double taxation and the prevention of tax evasion with respect to taxes on income and capital concluded in Luxembourg on 3 April 1996. The SICAV intends to comply with the provisions of the FATCA Law and the IGA entered into by Luxembourg in order to be considered FATCA compliant and will therefore not be subject to the withholding tax of 30% for its share of such payments attributable to the actual or deemed US investments of the SICAV. The SICAV will continuously assess the extent of the requirements imposed by FATCA, including the FATCA Law.

To ensure the SICAV's compliance with FATCA, the FATCA Law and the Luxembourg IGA in accordance with the foregoing, the SICAV may:

- request information or documentation, including W-8 tax forms, a Global Intermediary Identification Number (GIIN), if applicable, or any other valid evidence of a shareholder's FATCA registration with the IRS or a corresponding exemption, in order to ascertain such shareholder's FATCA status;
- report information concerning a shareholder and his account holding in the SICAV to the Luxembourg tax authorities if this account is deemed a US reportable account under the FATCA Law and the Luxembourg IGA;
- transmit to the Luxembourg tax authorities (in this case, the Administration des Contributions Directes) information relating to payments to shareholders with a FATCA status of nonparticipating foreign financial institution;
- deduct applicable US withholding taxes from certain payments made to a shareholder by or on behalf of the SICAV in accordance with FATCA and the FATCA Law and the Luxembourg IGA; and
- divulge any such personal information to any immediate paying agent of certain US source income as may be required for withholding and reporting to occur with respect to the payment of such income.

However, the SICAV does not intend to market the shares to persons who qualify as US Persons within the meaning of the US Securities Act or as "specified US persons" or US tax residents within the meaning of FATCA.

14. SUBSCRIPTIONS, REDEMPTIONS, CONVERSIONS AND TRANSFERS

Subscriptions/redemptions/conversions/transfers

Subscriptions, redemptions, conversions and transfers of shares of the SICAV are carried out in accordance with the provisions of the factsheets of the Sub-funds.

Subscriptions, redemptions and conversions are performed in the currency of the share class, as mentioned in the Sub-fund factsheet.

The subscription price of the share corresponds to the net asset value per share on the applicable Valuation Day, plus any applicable subscription fees, taxes, duties and brokerage fees. The share redemption price corresponds to the net asset value per share on the applicable Valuation Day, less any applicable redemption fees, taxes, duties and brokerage fees. Any rounding will be calculated according to banking practice.

Subscription, redemption, conversion and transfer forms are available on request from:

- from EFA
- at the registered office of the SICAV

Subscription, redemption, conversion and transfer orders on behalf of the SICAV must be sent to EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION, 2 rue d'Alsace, P.O. Box 1725, L-1017 Luxembourg or to the fax number +352 48 65 61 8002 or to the entities authorised to receive subscription, redemption,

conversion and transfer orders on behalf of the SICAV in the countries where the shares of the SICAV are offered for subscription to the public, according to the terms and conditions listed in the factsheets of the respective Sub-funds.

Subscribers should note that some Sub-funds or classes may not be accessible to all investors. The SICAV therefore reserves the right to limit Sub-fund or share class subscriptions and acquisitions to investors that meet the criteria set out by the SICAV. These criteria may, inter alia, relate to investors' country of residence to ensure that the SICAV complies with laws, customs, trading standards, tax requirements and any other considerations involving the country in question or linked to the investor's status (e.g. institutional investor). The SICAV reserves the right to reject any subscription in whole or in part; payments made in connection with the subscription will be returned to the subscriber.

In accordance with applicable law and subject to a report prepared by the SICAV's approved auditor in cases required by law and regulations, the Board of Directors may, at its discretion, issue shares in consideration for a contribution in kind of securities and other assets, provided that such securities and assets are consistent with the Sub-fund's investment objective and policy. The Board of Directors will only exercise its discretionary power if (i) the shareholder concerned consents thereto, and (ii) such transfer does not prejudice the other shareholders. All costs arising from a contribution in kind of other securities and assets will be borne by the relevant shareholder unless the Board of Directors considers such a contribution in kind to be in the interest of the relevant Sub-fund, in which case all or part of such costs may be borne by the SICAV.

In accordance with applicable law and subject to a report prepared by the SICAV's approved auditor in the cases required by law and regulations, the Board of Directors may also, at its discretion, redeem in kind the shares of the SICAV, using securities and other assets of the Sub-fund up to the redemption amount. The Board of Directors will only exercise its discretionary power if (i) the shareholder concerned consents thereto, and (ii) such transfer does not prejudice the other shareholders. All costs arising from a redemption in kind of other securities and assets will be borne by the relevant shareholder unless the Board of Directors considers such a redemption in kind to be in the interest of the relevant Sub-fund, in which case all or part of such costs may be borne by the SICAV.

In the event of redemption and/or conversion requests in respect of a Sub-fund relating to 10% or more of the Sub-fund's net assets or a threshold of less than 10% deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors may postpone such requests until a subsequent Valuation Day determined by the Board of Directors, as soon as the SICAV has sold the necessary assets, taking into consideration the interests of all shareholders, and has been able to dispose of the proceeds of such sales. These requests will be processed with priority over all other requests.

Provisions relating to anti-money-laundering and counter terrorist finance

In accordance with international anti-money-laundering and terrorist finance laws and regulations applicable in Luxembourg, professionals in the finance industry are subject to requirements aimed at preventing the use of undertakings for collective investment for the purposes of money laundering or terrorist finance. One result of these provisions is that the SICAV, EFA or any duly authorised person must in principle identify the subscriber in accordance with Luxembourg laws and regulations. The SICAV, EFA or any other duly authorised person may require the subscriber to provide any document or information deemed necessary to complete this identification.

EFA may require investors to provide any documents it deems necessary to carry out such identification. EFA may at any time require additional documentation in order to comply with applicable legal and regulatory requirements, including but not limited to the NCD Act (as defined in section "16. Taxation of the SICAV and of shareholders").

In the event of a delay or failure to provide the required documents or information, the application for subscription (or, where applicable, transfer) may be refused by the SICAV, by the Central Administration or by any authorised person and the application for redemption or conversion may be refused if the application is delayed. Neither the SICAV, EFA nor any other authorised person shall be held liable for (1) refusing to accept a subscription request, (2) a delay in processing a request or (3) a decision to suspend payment relating to an accepted request if the investor has not provided the required documents or information or has provided incomplete documents or information.

Shareholders may also be asked to provide additional or updated documents in accordance with permanent control and oversight requirements, pursuant to applicable laws and regulations.

Restrictions on share subscriptions and transfers

Distribution of shares in the SICAV may be restricted in some jurisdictions. Individuals holding a copy of the Prospectus should check any such restrictions with the Management Company and undertake to respect them.

The Prospectus is not a public offering or solicitation to purchase shares of the SICAV with regard to persons in jurisdictions in which such a public offering of shares of the SICAV is not permitted or if it could be considered that such an offer to this person is not permitted.

Furthermore, the SICAV is entitled to:

- refuse a share subscription request at its discretion,
- effect the compulsory repurchase of shares in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association.

Restrictions on share subscriptions and transfers applicable to US investors

None of the Sub-funds have been registered pursuant to the United States Securities Act of 1933 ("1933 Act") or any securities act in any State or political subdivision of the United States of America or its territories, possessions or other regions under the jurisdiction of the United States of America, in particular the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico ("United States"), and shares in these sub-funds may only be offered, sold or transferred in accordance with the provisions of the 1933 Act and the securities acts in said States or others.

Certain restrictions also apply to any subsequent transfer of Sub-funds to the United States or on behalf of US Persons, as defined in Regulation S of the 1933 Act (hereinafter "US Persons"), namely any US resident, any legal personality, partnership or other entity created or organised according to US law (including any assets of such a person created in the United States or organised according to US law). The SICAV is not, and will not be, registered under the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, in the United States.

Shareholders are required to notify the SICAV immediately if they are or become US Persons or if they hold share classes on behalf of or in the name of US Persons, or if they hold share classes in breach of any legislation or regulations, or even in circumstances that have or could have adverse regulatory or tax implications for the sub-fund or shareholders, or go against the interests of the SICAV. If the Board of Directors learns that a shareholder (a) is a US Person or holds shares on behalf of a US Person, (b) holds share classes in breach of any legislation or regulations or even in circumstances that have or could have adverse regulatory or tax implications for the SICAV or shareholders, or go against the interests of the SICAV or shareholders, or go against the interests of the SICAV, the SICAV will be entitled to effect the compulsory repayment of the shares concerned in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association.

Before making a decision on whether to subscribe or acquire shares in the SICAV, investors should consult their legal, tax, and financial advisers, auditor or any other professional adviser.

Market Timing / Late Trading

Market timing is a technique in which an investor subscribes and systematically redeems or converts shares of the SICAV within a short period of time by taking advantage of time differences and/or imperfections or deficiencies in the system for determining the net asset value of the SICAV's sub-funds. Market timing may disrupt the investment management of a sub-fund and adversely affect the performance of the sub-fund concerned.

Late trading is a technique consisting of accepting a subscription, conversion or redemption order received after the cut-off time for accepting orders on the relevant day and executing it at the price based on the net asset value applicable on that day.

In order to avoid such practices, the shares of the SICAV are issued, redeemed and converted at an unknown price and the SICAV will not accept orders received after the subscription, redemption and conversion deadlines indicated in the factsheets of the Sub-funds.

In accordance with applicable legal and regulatory provisions, the SICAV is not authorised to partake in market timing or late trading practices. The SICAV reserves the right to reject subscription and conversion orders issued by an investor that the SICAV suspects of employing such practices, and the SICAV reserves the right to take the necessary measures to protect SICAV shareholders, where appropriate. Subscriptions, redemptions and conversions shall be carried out at an unknown net asset value.

The SICAV's registrar and transfer agent shall put in place adequate procedures to ensure that subscription, redemption and conversion requests are received before the applicable deadline for

accepting such orders on the relevant Valuation Day. Subscriptions, redemptions and conversions are executed at an unknown NAV.

15. DEFINITION AND CALCULATION OF THE NET ASSET VALUE

The valuation of the net assets of each sub-fund of the SICAV and the calculation of the net asset value ("NAV") per share are carried out in accordance with the provisions of the Articles of Association on each valuation day indicated in the factsheet of the Sub-fund ("Valuation Day").

The NAV of a share, irrespective of the sub-fund and share class in which it is issued, will be determined in the currency of that share class.

The value of these assets held on the Valuation Day concerned is determined as follows:

- 1. The value of cash on hand or on deposit, bills and notes payable on demand and accounts receivable, prepaid expenses, dividends and interest announced or due but not yet received, shall be the nominal value of such assets, unless it is unlikely that such value can be fully realized; in the latter case, the value shall be determined by deducting a certain amount which the SICAV deems adequate to reflect the real value of such assets.
- 2. The value of any transferable securities and/or money market instruments and/or derivative financial instruments which are traded or listed on a stock exchange will be determined according to the last available price.
- 3. The value of any transferable securities and/or money market instruments and/or derivative financial instruments which are traded on a regulated market shall be based on the last available price.
- 4. To the extent that securities in the portfolio on the day in question are not traded or listed on a stock exchange or regulated market or if, in the case of securities listed or traded on a stock exchange or regulated market, the price determined in accordance with sub-paragraph 2) or 3) is not representative of the real value of such securities, they will be valued on the basis of their probable realisation value, which must be estimated prudently and in good faith.
- 5. The value of derivative financial instruments that are not listed on a stock exchange or traded on another organised market will be determined daily in a reliable manner and verified by a competent professional appointed by the SICAV in accordance with market practice.
- 6. Underlying shares or units of open-ended investment funds will be valued at their last available net asset value, reduced by any applicable commissions.
- 7. The value of money market instruments that are not listed on a stock exchange or traded on another organised market shall be based on the nominal value plus any capitalised interest or on an amortised cost basis.
- In the event that the above-mentioned calculation methods are inappropriate or misleading, the Board of Directors may adopt any other valuation principle appropriate for the SICAV's assets.
- 9. In circumstances justified by the interests of the SICAV or its shareholders (in particular to avoid market timing practices), the Board of Directors may take any other appropriate measures, such as applying a fair value valuation methodology to adjust the value of the SICAV's assets.

16. SUSPENSION OF THE CALCULATION OF NET ASSET VALUE

The determination of the net value of the shares and the issue, redemption and conversion of shares of one or more Sub-funds may be suspended by the Board of Directors in the following circumstances:

 during any period when any of the principal stock exchanges or markets on which a substantial portion of the SICAV's investments attributable to a Sub-fund are listed or traded is closed for any reason other than for normal holidays, or during which trading on such exchanges or markets is restricted or suspended;

- in the event of the existence of a situation which constitutes an emergency and from which it follows that the SICAV cannot normally dispose of the assets attributable to this Sub-fund or value them correctly;
- 3. when the means of communication, which are normally used to determine the price or value of investments attributable to a Sub-fund or the current price or value on a stock exchange, are out of order or restricted; or
- 4. during any period when the SICAV is unable to repatriate funds for the purpose of making payments following the redemption of shares, or during which a transfer of funds involved in the realisation or acquisition of investments or payments due following the redemption of such shares cannot, in the opinion of the Directors, be made at a normal rate of exchange; or
- 5. any period when, in the opinion of the Board of Directors, there are unusual circumstances making it impracticable or unfair to shareholders to continue trading in a Sub-fund; or
- 6. in the event of the liquidation of the SICAV or a Sub-fund, where redemption will be suspended from the date on which the first notice is given; or
- 7. during any period in which the net asset value of any subsidiary of the SICAV cannot be accurately determined; or
- 8. when the master UCITS of a feeder Sub-fund temporarily suspends the redemption or subscription of its units, either on its own initiative or at the request of the competent authorities.

In the event of the suspension of the calculation of the net asset value of the shares and of subscriptions, redemptions and conversions of shares of a sub-fund, the SICAV will notify this suspension to the shareholders requesting the subscription, redemption or conversion of shares and the shareholders may cancel their instructions.

17. TAXATION OF THE SICAV AND OF SHAREHOLDERS

The following information is based on the laws and regulations as well as decisions and practices currently in force in Luxembourg and is subject to change, possibly with retroactive effect. This summary does not purport to be an exhaustive description of all Luxembourg tax laws and all Luxembourg tax considerations that may be relevant to a decision to invest in, own, hold or dispose of shares and is not intended to provide tax advice to any particular investor or potential investor. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own advisers as to the implications of acquiring, holding or disposing of shares and the legal provisions applicable in their tax jurisdiction of residence. This summary does not describe the tax consequences arising from the laws of States or jurisdictions other than Luxembourg.

TAXATION OF THE COMPANY

The SICAV is not taxed on its income, profits or gains in Luxembourg.

In addition, the SICAV is not subject to wealth tax in Luxembourg.

No stamp duty, capital duty or other tax is payable in Luxembourg at the time of the issue of the SICAV's shares.

The SICAV, on the other hand, is subject to an annual subscription tax of 0.05% based on its net asset value at the end of the quarter concerned, which is calculated and paid quarterly.

A subscription tax rate reduced to 0.01% per annum is applicable to Luxembourg UCITS, the sole object of which is the collective investment in money market instruments, the placement of deposits with credit institutions, or both.

A reduced subscription tax rate of 0.01% per annum is applicable to individual sub-funds of umbrella UCITS, as well as to individual classes of securities issued within a UCITS or within a sub-fund of an umbrella UCITS, provided that the securities of these sub-funds or classes are reserved for one or more institutional investors.

The following are exempted from the subscription tax:

- Investments in Luxembourg UCIs or their sub-funds already subject to subscription tax,
- UCITS and their sub-funds:

- reserved for institutional investors and;
- the sole object of which is the collective investment in money market instruments and deposits with credit institutions; and
- with a weighted residual maturity of the portfolio not exceeding 90 days; and
- that receive the highest rating.
- UCITS or their sub-funds whose shares are reserved for institutions for occupational retirement provision;
- UCITS or their sub-funds whose main objective is to invest in microfinance institutions; and
- UCITS or their sub-funds whose securities are listed or traded on a stock exchange and whose sole objective is to replicate the performance of one or more indices.

Withholding tax

Interest and dividend income earned by the SICAV may be subject to non-recoverable withholding tax in the countries of origin. The SICAV may also be taxed on realised or unrealised capital gains on its income in the countries of origin. The SICAV may benefit from double taxation agreements concluded by Luxembourg which provide for exemption from withholding tax or a reduction in the tax rate at source.

Distributions made by the SICAV, as well as the proceeds of liquidation and the capital gains arising therefrom, are not subject to withholding tax in Luxembourg.

TAXATION OF SHAREHOLDERS

Individuals resident in Luxembourg

Capital gains realised on the sale of shares by investors who are natural persons resident in Luxembourg and who hold shares in the context of their personal portfolios (and not their commercial activities) are generally exempt from Luxembourg income tax unless:

- (i) The shares are sold within 6 months of their subscription or acquisition; or
- (ii) If the shares held in the private portfolio represent a significant interest. An interest is considered significant when the seller owns or has held, either alone or with his/her spouse or partner and minor children, either directly or indirectly, at any time during the five years preceding the date of the disposal, more than 10% of the share capital of the SICAV.

Distributions paid by the SICAV will be subject to income tax. Luxembourg personal income tax is levied on a progressive scale of income tax plus the contribution to the employment fund.

Companies resident in Luxembourg

Investors that are resident companies in Luxembourg will be subject to corporate income tax of 26.01 % (in 2018 for entities with registered offices in Luxembourg City) on capital gains realised at the time of the sale of shares and distributions received from the SICAV.

Investors that are resident companies of Luxembourg and that benefit from a special tax regime, such as, for example, (i) a UCI governed by the Law of 2010, (ii) specialised investment funds governed by the amended Law of 13 February 2007 relating to specialised investment funds, (iii) a reserved alternative investment fund governed by the Law of 23 July 2016 relating to reserved alternative investment funds, as amended, or (iv) family asset management companies governed by the amended Law of 11 May 2007 on the creation of a family asset management company are exempt from tax in Luxembourg, but are subject to an annual subscription tax. The income from the shares and the capital gains realised thereon are not subject to income tax in Luxembourg.

The shares shall form part of the taxable capital of investors that are resident companies of Luxembourg unless the holder of the shares is (i) a UCI governed by the Law of 2010, (ii) a vehicle governed by the amended Law of 22 March 2004 relating to (iii) an investment company governed by the amended Law of 15 June 2004 on private equity investment companies, (iv) a specialised investment fund governed by the amended Law of 13 February 2007 relating to specialised investment funds, (v) a reserved alternative investment fund governed by the Law of 23 July 2016 on reserved alternative investment funds, as amended, or (vi) a family asset management company governed by the amended Law of 11 May 2007 on the creation of a family asset management company. The wealth tax is levied annually at the rate of 0.5%. The portion exceeding €500 million is taxed at the reduced rate of 0.05%.

Shareholders not resident in Luxembourg

Individuals who are not resident in Luxembourg or legal entities that do not have a permanent establishment in Luxembourg to which the shares are attributable are not subject to Luxembourg tax on capital gains realised on the disposal of shares nor on distributions received from the SICAV, and the shares will not be subject to wealth tax.

Automatic exchange of information

Following the drafting by the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and Development ("OECD") of a common reporting standard ("CRS") to achieve the full and multilateral automatic exchange of information (AEOI) in future at a global level, Directive 2014/107/EU amending Directive 2011/16/EU on the mandatory automatic exchange of information in tax matters (the "European Directive on AEOI") was adopted on 9 December 2014 to implement AEOI within Member States.

The European Directive on AEOI was transposed into Luxembourg law by the Law of 18 December 2015 on the automatic exchange of information relating to financial accounts in tax matters ("AEOI Law").

The AEOI Law asks Luxembourg financial institutions to identify the holders of financial assets and to determine whether they are tax residents of countries with which Luxembourg has concluded an agreement on the exchange of tax information. The Luxembourg financial institutions then disclose the information on the financial accounts of asset holders to the Luxembourg tax authorities, which transfer this information automatically to the relevant foreign tax authorities on an annual basis.

Consequently, the SICAV may require its investors to provide information relating to the identity and tax residence of financial account holders (including certain entities and their controlling persons) in order to verify their NCD status. Answering questions related to NCD is mandatory. The personal data obtained will be used within the framework of the NCD law or for the purposes indicated by the SICAV in accordance with the information mentioned in the section "Data Protection".

Under the AEOI Law, the first exchange of information should take place by 30 September 2017 for information relating to the 2016 calendar year. According to the European Directive on AEOI, the first AEOI must be applied by 30 September 2017 to the local tax authorities of Member States for data relating to the 2016 calendar year.

Furthermore, Luxembourg signed the multilateral agreement between the relevant OECD authorities ("Multilateral Agreement") for the automatic exchange of information pursuant to AEOI. The Multilateral Agreement aims to implement the AEOI in non-Member States; it requires agreements on a country-by-country basis.

It is recommended that investors consult their own advisers on the possible tax and other consequences of the implementation of AEOI.

18. LIQUIDATION / MERGER

Liquidation of the SICAV

The SICAV may be dissolved upon the decision of the general meeting as provided by Luxembourg law in respect of the amendment of the Articles of Association.

Any decision to dissolve the SICAV will be published in the RESA.

Once the decision to dissolve the SICAV has been made, the issue, redemption and conversion of shares of the SICAV will be prohibited on pain of nullity.

If the share capital is less than two thirds of the minimum capital provided for by the Law of 2010, a general meeting will be held upon convocation by the Board of Directors, which will submit the question of the dissolution of the SICAV to it. The general meeting will deliberate without a quorum and decide by simple majority of the shares represented at the meeting. If the SICAV's share capital falls below one quarter of the minimum capital, the board of directors must table a motion to dissolve the SICAV at the general meeting of shareholders, which shall deliberate without any quorum requirement; the liquidation may be decided by the shareholders owning one quarter of the shares represented at the Meeting.

In the event of the SICAV being dissolved, it shall be liquidated by one or several liquidators, who may be natural or legal persons and who shall be appointed by the general meeting of shareholders. Said meeting will determine their powers and remuneration.

The liquidation will take place in accordance with the law setting out the distribution among the shareholders of the net proceeds of liquidation after deduction of liquidation costs: the proceeds of liquidation will be distributed among shareholders in proportion to their rights.

Upon completion of the liquidation of the SICAV, those sums not claimed by shareholders will be paid to the Caisse des Consignations, which will hold them at the shareholders' disposal for the period provided by law.

Liquidation/Merger of sub-funds

A general meeting of the shareholders of a Sub-fund, deliberating under the same quorum and voting conditions as for amendments to the Articles of Association, may decide to cancel the shares of that particular Sub-fund and reimburse the shareholders of that Sub-fund for the value of their shares.

In the event that the net assets of a Sub-fund/share class fall below the equivalent of EUR 10 million (EUR 10,000,000), or if a change in the economic or political situation relating to the Sub-fund/share class concerned or in the interest of the shareholders so warrants, the Board of Directors may decide to compulsorily redeem or liquidate the remaining shares of the Sub-fund/share class concerned without the approval of the shareholders.

Shareholders will be notified by mail of the liquidation decision. The letter will indicate the reasons for the liquidation and how it will proceed. Unless the Board of Directors decides otherwise in the interest of the shareholders or to maintain equal treatment among shareholders, the shareholders of the Sub-fund/share class concerned may continue to request the redemption or conversion of their shares free of charge, provided, however, that the redemption or conversion prices will take into account the liquidation costs.

Upon completion of the liquidation of the Sub-fund/share class concerned, those sums not claimed by shareholders will be paid to the Caisse des Consignations, which will hold them at the shareholders' disposal for the period provided by Luxembourg law. After this time, the balance will revert to the State of Luxembourg.

The Board of Directors may decide to close any Sub-fund by merger with another Sub-fund or another undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities subject to Directive 2009/65/EC (or sub-fund thereof) at any time. Shareholders will be informed of such a decision in the manner provided for in the Law of 2010.

A meeting of shareholders of a Sub-fund may decide to contribute the assets (and liabilities) of the Sub-fund to another undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities subject to Directive 2009/65/EC (or sub-fund thereof) in exchange for the distribution to the shareholders of the sub-fund of shares of that undertaking for collective investment in transferable securities (UCITS). No quorum is required for such a meeting and decisions are taken by a simple majority of the votes cast. In the event of a merger of a Sub-fund resulting in the dissolution of the SICAV, the merger will be decided by a meeting of shareholders acting without quorum requirements and by a simple majority of the votes cast.

Additional or complementary provisions may apply in accordance with the Articles of Association.

The foregoing provisions relating to mergers/contributions shall apply only to the extent that they do not contravene the provisions relating to mergers enacted by the Law of 2010 and its implementing regulations.

19. FINANCIAL REPORTS

The SICAV shall publish an audited annual report for each financial year ending 31 December and an unaudited semi-annual report for each half-year to 30 June.

These financial reports will include information on the financial state of each individual Sub-fund. The consolidation currency is the euro.

20. COSTS

The SICAV may bear all of its operating costs, in particular the:

- fees and reimbursed expenses of the Board of Directors;

FFG SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law

- fees paid to the investment advisers, Managers, the Management Company, the Custodian, its EFA, its financial service agents, its paying agents, the auditor, the SICAV's legal advisers, as well as other advisers or agents on whose services the SICAV may be required to call;
- brokerage fees, including any research costs;
- fees for producing, publishing and distributing the prospectus, the key investor information document and the annual and semi-annual reports;
- printing of bearer share certificates for single and/or collective investors;
- fees and expenses relating to the creation of the SICAV;
- taxes and levies including subscription tax and government fees relating to its activity;
- insurance fees for the SICAV, its directors and its managers;
- fees and expenses linked to the registration and maintenance of the registration of the SICAV with government bodies and with Luxembourg and foreign stock exchanges;
- fees for the publication of the net asset value and of the subscription and redemption price or for any other document, including the fees for preparing and printing documents in any language judged to be required in the interests of shareholders;
- fees relating to the marketing of shares in the SICAV, including marketing and advertising fees as determined in good faith by the SICAV's Board of Directors;
- fees for creating, hosting, maintaining and updating the SICAV's website(s);
- legal fees incurred by the SICAV or the Custodian when acting in the interests of the SICAV's shareholders;
- legal fees of directors, managers, authorised representatives, employees and agents of the SICAV incurred in relation to any action, procedure or process in which they are involved due to their position as a director, manager, authorised representative, employee or agent of the SICAV; and
- all extraordinary fees including but not limited to legal fees, interest and the total amount of any tax, levy or similar charge imposed on the SICAV or its assets.

In consideration for its services, the Management Company is authorised to receive a fee from the SICAV corresponding to a maximum of 0.05% of the SICAV's assets per annum, subject to a minimum not exceeding a maximum of EUR 10,000 per annum for each additional sub-fund.

This fee will be calculated on the basis of the average Net Asset Value of the SICAV at the end of the month of the previous quarter and is payable quarterly in arrears.

Third parties to whom functions have been delegated by the Management Company with the approval of the SICAV, will be remunerated directly by the SICAV (out of the assets of the relevant Sub-fund), taking into account the fact that these remunerations are not included in the Management Company fee.

The Management Company may, in connection with the launch of a new "complex" sub-fund, charge additional fees for the performance of an additional risk management mission using VaR.

Additional fees and other costs charged to the relevant Fund for other additional services as may be agreed from time to time are set out in the relevant section. In addition, the Management Company will be entitled to be reimbursed for its reasonable costs, including, without limitation, expenses incurred in the performance of its duties.

The SICAV will bear the various costs incurred by its founders in connection with the conception, organisation and promotion of the project and the formation of the SICAV, as well as the costs of its organisation. The costs may be amortised over a maximum period of five years from the date on which the first Sub-fund is launched, pro rata on the basis of the number of operational Sub-funds at a given time.

If a Sub-fund is launched after the SICAV's launch date, the costs of establishing the new Sub-fund shall be charged only to that Sub-fund and may be amortised over a maximum period of five years from the date on which that Sub-fund is launched.

21. GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Any properly constituted meeting of shareholders of the SICAV will represent the entire body of

shareholders of the SICAV. It has the power to order or ratify all acts relating to the SICAV's operations.

The annual general meeting of shareholders of the SICAV is held each year at the registered office of the SICAV in Luxembourg at the date and time decided by the Board of Directors but no later than six months after the end of the SICAV's financial year. Other general meetings, called by the Board of Directors, may be held at the times and places specified in the notices of meeting. Notices of all general meetings are sent to all shareholders in accordance with the legal provisions. These notices shall indicate the time and place of the General Meeting, the admission conditions, the agenda, the quorum and majority required. The requirements for participation, quorum and majority at any general meeting are those laid down in the Law of 1915.

In accordance with Luxembourg laws and regulations, the notice convening any general meeting of shareholders may specify that the quorum and majority requirements applicable to such meeting will be determined by reference to the shares issued and outstanding at a certain date and time prior to the general meeting (the "Record Date"), and that the right of a shareholder to participate in a general meeting of shareholders and to exercise voting rights attached to such shares will be determined by reference to the shares held by such shareholder on the Registration Date.

Subject to the foregoing provisions and unless otherwise provided for in a specific factsheet for a Sub-fund, the annual general meeting of shareholders of the SICAV decides, on the proposal of the Board of Directors, on the amount of dividends that may be allocated from the assets of the various Sub-funds to the distribution shares of the various Sub-funds.

22. SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Details of the net asset value, the issue price and the redemption and conversion price of each share class can be obtained every full bank business day in Luxembourg from the SICAV's registered office. The historical performance of each share class is indicated in the Key Information of the corresponding SICAV.

Amendments to the SICAV's Articles of Association will be published in the RESA.

Insofar as it is required by the applicable legislation, notices to attend general meetings of shareholders shall be published in the RESA and in a Luxembourg national publication and in one or more publications distributed/published in other countries where the shares of the SICAV are available for public subscription.

Insofar as it is required by the applicable legislation, other notices to shareholders shall be published in a Luxembourg national publication and in one or more publications distributed/published in other countries where the shares of the SICAV are available for public subscription.

The following documents are available to the public at the registered office of the SICAV and at the registered office of the Management Company:

- the SICAV's prospectus, including the factsheets,
- the Articles of Association,
- the SICAV's key investor information (also published at https://www.waystone.com),
- the SICAV's financial reports.

A copy of the agreements entered into with the various service providers of the SICAV may be consulted free of charge at the registered office of the SICAV.

FFG

Sub-fund Factsheets

FFG – EUROPEAN EQUITIES SUSTAINABLE MODERATE

...

		INVESTMENT POLICY The Sub-fund is a feeder sub-fund that invests at least 85% of its
Objective of the Sub- fund	>	net assets in the FFG – European Equities Sustainable sub-fund (the " Master Fund "), and more specifically in class I. The performance of the Sub-fund may differ from that of the Master Fund due to (i) the expenses incurred by the Sub-fund, (ii) the liquid assets held and (iii) the hedging techniques implemented by the Sub-fund. The objective of the Sub-fund is long-term capital appreciation through a diversified portfolio, while maintaining a limited risk of capital loss and a lower level of volatility than the equity markets. The Sub-fund's investment strategy may be described as "defensive". In addition to its financial objective, the Sub-fund generates a
		concrete social impact through the SICAV's Distribution Coordinator, whose approach is certified by Forum Ethibel. After deducting its operating expenses, the Distribution Coordinator donates the greater of 50% of its net profits or 10% of its turnover to the social project it has set up and runs itself, "Funds For Good Impact". "Funds for Good Impact" devotes all of its financial resources to the fight against poverty and to job creation, allocating unsecured loans and support to people in difficulty with a business project, enabling them to start their own business. More information is also available at <u>www.fundsforgood.eu</u> .
Investment policy	>	The Sub-fund invests at least 85% of its net assets in the Master Fund. On an ancillary basis and in order to limit the Sub-fund's exposure to equity market risks, systematic hedging of equity exposure will be implemented. Hedging will limit the fund's exposure to the equity market to a maximum of 50%. Portfolio assets not invested in the Master Fund or in hedging instruments will be held as cash in the Sub-fund.
		Information on the Master Fund
		The Master Fund is a sub-fund of the SICAV and is managed by the Management Company, which has appointed Acadian Asset Management LLC as manager. The Management Company has implemented internal rules of conduct (the " Rules of Conduct ") describing, among other things, the coordination of the frequency and timing of NAV calculation and share price publication, the coordination of the transmission of subscription, redemption and conversion orders of the Sub-fund and of events impacting subscription, redemption or conversion transactions. Information on the Rules of Conduct is available on request from the Management Company.
		The Prospectus (including the Master Fund factsheet), the KIID and the most recent annual and semi-annual reports of the Master Fund are available upon request at the registered office of the Management Company and on the following website: <u>https://www.waystone.com/</u> . The investment objective and main features of the Master Fund are described in more detail below.
		The investment policy of the Master Fund is contained in the Appendix relating to the FGG – European Equities Sustainable Sub-fund.

Environmental, social and governance criteria > The objective of the Sub-fund_is to invest sustainably within the meaning of Article 9 of the Sustainability Regulation and to contribute to a reduction in carbon emissions with a view to achieving the long-term global warming limitation targets set by the Paris Agreement. The Sub-fund, as a feeder sub-fund, will comply with the Funds For Good Responsible Investment Policy, which is available in its entirety at www.fundsforgood.eu. This policy covers the following aspects:

- 1. Removal from its investment universe of a series of companies or sectors, in particular companies:
 - (i) violating the UN Global Compact principles;

(ii) producing weapons that violate fundamental humanitarian principles and any company that derives more than 5% of its revenue from conventional weapons;

(iii) deriving more than 10% of their income from the production of tobacco, tobacco products or the distribution, sale or wholesale of tobacco;

(iv) in the energy sector in cases where less than 40% of revenues are from gas or renewable energy sources;

(v) that produce electricity in cases where more than 30% of the energy production is based on nuclear, gas or oil resources.

In addition, the Sub-fund will not invest in commodity futures and government debt or public companies from countries that violate the UN Global Compact principles or are under EU embargo.

- 2. A policy covering Environmental, Social and Governance aspects, aiming, among other things, to improve its social aspect and establish a voting rights policy to encourage principles of good governance.
- 3. A "Best-in-class" policy, consisting in favouring investments in the most virtuous companies in terms of their social responsibility, and avoiding the less virtuous ones.
- 4. A 20% reduction in the Sub-fund's carbon footprint relative to an index representative of its investment policy as reported in the monthly report available at www.fundsforgood.eu.

Reference currency

Investment horizon

- > EUR
- > More than 3 years

Risk management

> Commitment approach.

In order to comply with the requirements of Article 42(3) of the Law of 2010, the Sub-fund calculates its global exposure related to financial derivative instruments by combining its own direct exposure with the Master Fund's actual exposure to such instruments in proportion to the Sub-fund's investment in the Master Fund.

		FFG SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law
Risk factors	>	Investors are invited to read section 7 "Risks associated with an investment in the SICAV" of this Prospectus to find out the potential risks associated with an investment in this Sub-fund.
Benchmark Index		EMIX World Europe NTR Index
		The benchmark is used only for the purpose of calculating the performance fee.
		The Sub-fund is actively managed, meaning that the Manager makes investment decisions with a view to achieving the investment objective and policy of the Sub-fund. The Manager is in no way limited by the components of the benchmark in positioning its portfolio, and the Sub-fund may not hold any components of the benchmark.
		This index does not take into account the sustainable investment objective of the Sub-fund.
MAN	AGEI	R AND/OR INVESTMENT ADVISOR
Manager	>	Acadian Asset Management LLC subject to oversight by the US Securities and Exchange Commission.
		DISTRIBUTION
Distribution Coordinator	>	Funds for Good S.A.
COMMISSION	S AN	D FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER
Subscription fee	>	Maximum 3% for the benefit of the Sub-fund's distributors
Redemption fee	>	None
Conversion fee	>	None
COMMISSIC	ONS A	AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND
Management and Distribution Fee	>	The Management and Distribution Fee is paid respectively to the Manager and the Distribution Coordinator by the SICAV.
and Performance Fee		The Management and Distribution Fee is different depending on the share class to which it applies.
		The Management Fee includes a performance fee. The performance fee compensates the Manager in the event that the performance of its hedge against market risks is higher than that which would have been generated by a fixed 70% hedge of the exposure to the Master Sub-fund via futures. Remuneration will be calculated as follows:
		1. For each financial year during which the performance of the share class exceeds that of the composite benchmark (30% EMIX + 70% GETB1 + Alpha EES*weight EES) (the "Benchmark") corresponding to a fixed hedge with a performance equivalent to 70% on the EMIX World Europe NTR Index, expressed as a percentage (the "Outperformance"), a fee of 15% of the Outperformance calculated on the net assets of the day before deduction of the performance fee, is due under the conditions set out in paragraph 2. The Outperformance is the difference (positive) between the performance (positive or negative) of the share class and the performance (positive or negative) of the Benchmark over the year in question. A provision will be made for this performance fee on each Valuation Day. If

the cumulative performance is negative during this period, no Performance Fee will be payable.

2. The Performance Fee is only due in the event that (1) the performance of the share class exceeds the performance of the Benchmark over the year, and (2) in the event of a negative performance at the end of the financial year, this negative performance will be extended to the next calculation period ("High Watermark" Principle). In the event that the performance of the share class does not exceed the Benchmark, no performance fee is applied.

3. Investors' attention is drawn to the fact that the performance fee is subject to the crystallization principle. Where shares are redeemed on a date other than the date on which a Performance Fee is paid and a provision has been made for the Performance Fee, the amount of the provisioned Performance Fee attributable to the redeemed shares will be deemed to have vested in the Investment Manager and will be paid at the end of the relevant year. In the event of subscription, the calculation of the performance fee is adjusted in order to avoid the subscription having an impact on the amount of provisions for performance fees. For the purposes of this adjustment, the amount relating to the subscription is removed from the calculation of the outperformance for the day in question. The provision for the performance fee will be reduced by 15% of the outperformance determined on the Valuation Day on which the subscriptions were deducted, multiplied by the number of shares subscribed.

The fees set forth below include the fees and expenses for the Management and Distribution of the Master Sub-fund.

Class R Dis shares:

Max. 1.5% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned + performance fee.

Class R Acc shares:

Max. 1.5% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned + performance fee.

Class I Acc shares:

Max. 0.95% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned + performance fee.

Class C Acc shares:

Max 1.2% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned + performance fee.

Class C Dis shares:

Max 1.2% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned + performance fee.

Retention fee of up to 0.04% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund.

Custodian fee of a maximum of 0.03% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund with a minimum of \leq 1,000 per month per Sub-fund.

A cash flow monitoring fee of up to \in 800 per month for the Subfund is applicable.

Sub-custodian fees and liquidation fees are charged in addition. Where applicable, VAT will be added.

Custodian commission (excluding transaction and correspondence fees)

SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law		
Management Company fees	>	Maximum 0.05% p.a. based on the Sub-fund's average net assets with a minimum not exceeding €10,000 per Sub-fund.
Central Administration Fee	>	Fixed fee of EUR 24,300 per Sub-fund per annum and a maximum of 0.021% based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund.
Other fees and commissions	>	The Sub-fund will also charge other operating costs as listed in of the SICAV's Articles of Association.
Total Expenses	>	The total expenses of the Sub-fund and the Master Fund will not exceed 2% based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund.

FFG

		TRADING OF	SHARES		
Share classes	>	Share class	ISIN code	Currency	
available to		Class R Acc	LU0945616984	EUR	
subscribers		Class R Dis	LU1697916788	EUR	
		Class I Acc	LU0945617289	EUR	
		Class C Acc	LU2059537527	EUR	
		Class C Dis	LU2059537444	EUR	
Minimum initial	>	Share class	Minimum initial sub	oscription	
subscription		Class R Acc	EUR 100		
•		Class R Dis EUR 100			
		Class I Acc EUR 500,000			
		Class C Acc	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		
		Class C Dis	EUR 100		
Subscriptions,		subscription amount d shareholders are treat	nount less than the minimu efined above, while ensuri ed equally on the same Va : Subscription, redemption	ng that aluation Day.	
redemptions and conversions		FUND ADMINISTRAT preceding the Valuation of that Valuation Day "COMMISSIONS A	e 12 p.m. (Luxembourg tir ION on the full business on n Day will be executed at t subject to the fees indio ND FEES CHARG "COMMISSIONS AND FE	day in Luxembou he Net Asset Vali cated above und ED TO TH	
		As from 31 August 20			
		orders received be EUROPEAN FUND AD processed based on subject to the fees in FEES CHARGED TO	21: Subscription, redempt fore 12:00 p.m. (Luxe DMINISTRATION on the V the Net Asset Value of t dicated above under "CC THE SHAREHOLDER" an D TO THE SUB-FUND".	mbourg time) aluation Day will I hat Valuation Da MMISSIONS AN	
		orders received bet EUROPEAN FUND AD processed based on subject to the fees in FEES CHARGED TO AND FEES CHARGED Subscriptions and red	ore 12:00 p.m. (Luxe DMINISTRATION on the V the Net Asset Value of t dicated above under "CC THE SHAREHOLDER" an	mbourg time) aluation Day will I hat Valuation Da MMISSIONS AN d "COMMISSION no later than thre	
		orders received be EUROPEAN FUND AD processed based on subject to the fees in FEES CHARGED TO AND FEES CHARGED Subscriptions and red full Luxembourg busin	Fore 12:00 p.m. (Luxe DMINISTRATION on the V the Net Asset Value of t dicated above under "CC THE SHAREHOLDER" an D TO THE SUB-FUND". emptions must be paid up ess days following the Val on and conversion orders	mbourg time) aluation Day will I hat Valuation Da MMISSIONS AN d "COMMISSION no later than thre uation Day.	

FFG SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law		
Valuation Day	>	Every full business day in Luxembourg. The Net Asset Value will be effectively calculated on the next full bank business day in Luxembourg following the Valuation Day
Publication of NAV	>	At the registered office of the SICAV.
Listing on Luxembourg Stock Exchange	>	No.
		POINTS OF CONTACT
Subscriptions, redemptions, conversions and transfers		> EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION Fax :+352 48 65 61 8002

> https://www.waystone.com

Request for

documentation

FFG – GLOBAL FLEXIBLE SUSTAINABLE

		INVESTMENT POLICY
Objective of the Sub-fund	>	The sub-fund's objective is to seek a medium-term return higher than that of a bond investment in euros. In addition to its financial objective, the Sub-fund generates a concrete social impact through the SICAV's Distribution Coordinator, whose approach is certified by Forum Ethibel. After deducting its operating expenses, the Distribution Coordinator donates the greater of 50% of its net profits or 10% of its turnover to the social project it has set up and runs itself, "Funds For Good Impact". "Funds for Good Impact" devotes all of its financial resources to the fight against poverty and to job creation, allocating unsecured loans and support to people in
Investment policy	>	difficulty with a business project, enabling them to start their own business. More information is also available at <u>www.fundsforgood.eu</u> . The Sub-fund invests without geographic, sector or currency restrictions in equities, bonds (including, but not limited to, inflation-linked bonds), money market instruments or cash.
		With effect from 4 March 2020, the Sub-fund may invest up to 10% of its assets in Chinese A-shares through Shanghai-Hong Kong Stock Connect and Shenzhen-Hong Kong Stock Connect.
		The percentage of the Sub-fund's portfolio invested in the different instruments varies according to the valuation of the different asset classes and market circumstances. For the purpose of portfolio diversification, the Sub-fund may invest in Exchange Traded Commodities ("ETCs") on precious metals in accordance with Article 41 (1) a) - d) of the Law of 17 December 2010 relating to undertakings for collective investment and Article 2 of the Grand-Ducal Regulation of 8 February 2008 as well as point 17 of the CESR/07-044b recommendations and provided that these products do not contain embedded derivatives and do not result in physical delivery of the underlying metal. In order to achieve its objective and subject to the provisions of sections 5. and 6. of the Prospectus, the Sub-fund may invest up to 10% of its net assets in UCITS and other UCIs (including Exchange Traded Funds (ETFs) which are equivalent to UCITS and/or UCIs and which are subject to supervision considered by the CSSF as equivalent). The Sub-fund may also use derivative products and instruments (such as equity index futures, bond futures, forward exchange contracts on convertible or non-convertible currencies, options traded on regulated markets) to hedge or optimise portfolio exposure.
Environmental, social and governance criteria	>	1. The objective of the Sub-fund is to invest sustainably within the meaning of Article 9 of the Sustainability Regulation and to contribute to a reduction in carbon emissions with a view to achieving the long-term global warming limitation targets set by the Paris Agreement. The selection of the assets or UCITS or other UCIs making up the Sub-fund's portfolio will comply with the Funds For Good Responsible Investment Policy, available in its entirety on www.fundsforgood.eu. This policy covers the following aspects:
		Removal from its investment universe of a series of companies or sectors, in particular companies:
		(i) violating the UN Global Compact principles;
		(ii) producing weapons that violate fundamental humanitarian principles and any company that derives more than 5% of its revenue from conventional weapons;

COMMISS Subscription fee	ION	 > Maximum 3% for the benefit of the Sub-fund's distributors 	
Distribution Coordinator		> Funds for Good S.A.	
Manager		 > BLI-BANQUE DE LUXEMBOURG INVESTMENTS S.A. sub to the supervision of the Commission de Surveillance du Sect Financier. 	
	MAN	IAGER AND/OR INVESTMENT ADVISOR	
		investment decisions with a view to achieving the investment object and policy of the Sub-fund without reference to an index. This act management includes making decisions regarding asset selective regional allocation, sector views and overall level of market expose The Manager is in no way limited by the components of a benchm index in the positioning of its portfolio.	tiv tiv ior
Benchmark Index		The Sub-fund is actively managed, meaning that the Manager mal	ke
Risk factors	>	Investors are invited to read section 7 "Risks associated with investment in the SICAV" of this Prospectus to find out the poten risks associated with an investment in this Sub-fund.	
Risk management	>	Commitment approach.	
		The Sub-fund's investment policy is suitable for investors who interested in the financial markets and who are looking for cap appreciation over the medium term. The investor must be prepared accept significant losses due to fluctuations in stock market prices.	oita
Investment horizon	>	More than 3 years	
Reference currency	>	EUR	
		This socially responsible investment policy is available www.fundsforgood.eu.	â
		 A 20% reduction in the Sub-fund's carbon footprint relative an index representative of its investment policy as reported the monthly report available at www.fundsforgood.eu. 	
		 A "Best-in-class" policy, consisting in favouring investments the most virtuous companies in terms of their so responsibility, and avoiding the less virtuous ones. 	
		 A policy covering Environmental, Social and Governal aspects, aiming, among other things, to improve its so aspect and the establishment of a voting rights policy encourage the principles of good governance. 	cia
		In addition, the Sub-fund will not invest in commodity futures a government debt or public companies from countries that viol the UN Global Compact principles or are under EU embarge	lat
		(v) that produce electricity in cases where more than 30% of energy production is based on nuclear, gas or oil resources	
		(iv) in the energy sector in cases where less than 40% revenues are from gas or renewable energy sources;	, (
		sale or wholesale of tobacco;	

FFG SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law				
Redemption fee	>	None		
Conversion fee	>	None		
COMMISS	SIONS	AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND		
Management and Distribution Fee	>	The Management and Distribution Fee is paid to the Manager and the Distribution Coordinator by the SICAV.		
		The Management and Distribution Fee is different depending on the share class to which it applies.		
		<u>Class R Dis shares:</u>		
		Max. 1.30% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		Class R Acc shares:		
		Max. 1.30% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		Class I Acc shares:		
		Max. 0.65 % p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		Class C Acc shares:		
		Max 0.95% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		Class C Dis shares:		
		Max 0.95% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		Class F Acc shares:		
		Max. 0.55% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		Class S Dis shares:		
		Max 0.80% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		The subscription period for these shares will end when the sum of its net asset value and the net asset value of the "S Acc" share class reaches or exceeds 50 million euros or on any other date at the discretion of the Board of Directors.		
		Class S Acc shares:		
		Max 0.80% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.		
		The subscription period for these shares will end when the sum of its net asset value and the net asset value of the "S Dis" share class reaches or exceeds 50 million euros or on any other date at the discretion of the Board of Directors.		
Custodian commissic (excluding transaction and correspondence fees)	-	Retention fee of up to 0.04% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund. Custodian fee of a maximum of 0.03% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund with a minimum of \in 1,000 per month per Sub-fund.		
		A cash flow monitoring fee of up to €800 per month for the Sub- fund is applicable.		
		Sub-custodian fees and liquidation fees are charged in addition. Where applicable, VAT will be added.		

		SICAV with multiple s governed by Luxemb		
Management Company fees	>		a. based on the Sub-fund's exceeding €10,000 per S	
Central Administration Fee	>		I,300 per Sub-fund per ar 6 based on the average n	
Other fees and commissions	>	The Sub-fund will als the SICAV's Articles	so charge other operating of Association.	costs as listed in
		TRADING OF SI	HARES	
Share classes	>	Share class	ISIN code	Currency
available to		Class R Dis	LU1697916861	EUR
subscribers		Class R Acc	LU1697917083	EUR
		Class I Acc	LU1697917166	EUR
		Class C Acc	LU1697917240	EUR
		Class C Dis	LU1697917323	EUR
		Class F Acc	LU1697917596	EUR
		Class S Dis	LU1735585462	EUR
		Class S Acc	LU1735585546	EUR
Minimum initial	>	Share class	Minimum initial sub	scription
subscription		Class R Dis	EUR 100	
		Class R Acc	EUR 100	
		Class I Acc	EUR 500,00	0
		Class C Acc	EUR 100	
		Class C Dis	EUR 100	
		Class F Acc	EUR 100	
		Class S Dis	EUR 100	
		Class S Acc	EUR 100	

FFG

The SICAV's Board of Directors may accept, at its discretion, subscriptions for an amount less than the minimum initial subscription amount defined above, while ensuring that shareholders are treated equally on the same Valuation Day.

Subscriptions, redemptions and conversions	>	Until 30 August 2021: Subscription, redemption and conversion orders received before 2 p.m. (Luxembourg time) at EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION on the full business day in Luxembourg preceding the Valuation Day will be executed at the Net Asset Value of that Valuation Day, subject to the fees indicated above under "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER" and "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND".
		As from 31 August 2021: Subscription, redemption and conversion orders received before 2:00 p.m. (Luxembourg time) at EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION on the Valuation Day will be processed based on the Net Asset Value of that Valuation Day, subject to the fees indicated above under "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER" and "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND".
		Subscriptions and redemptions must be paid up no later than three full Luxembourg business days following the Valuation Day. Subscription, redemption and conversion orders are thus submitted by investors at an unknown NAV. Investors' attention is drawn to the fact that the SICAV does not authorise market timing practices. The SICAV reserves the right to reject all subscription and conversion orders issued by an investor that the SICAV suspects of employing such practices, and to take the necessary measures to protect SICAV shareholders, where appropriate.
Valuation Day	>	Every full business day in Luxembourg. The Net Asset Value will be effectively calculated on the next full bank business day in Luxembourg following the Valuation Day
Publication of NAV	>	At the registered office of the SICAV.
Listing on Luxembourg Stock Exchange	>	No.

		POINTS OF CONTACT
Subscriptions, redemptions, conversions and transfers	>	EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION Fax :+352 48 65 61 8002
Request for documentation	>	https://www.waystone.com

FFG – EUROPEAN EQUITIES SUSTAINABLE

		INVESTMENT POLICY
Objective of the Sub- fund	>	The FFG European Equities Sustainable sub-fund will seek long- term capital appreciation through a diversified portfolio of European equities.
		In addition to its financial objective, the Sub-fund generates a concrete social impact through the SICAV's Distribution Coordinator, whose approach is certified by Forum Ethibel. After deducting its operating expenses, the Distribution Coordinator donates the greater of 50% of its net profits or 10% of its turnover to the social project it has set up and runs itself, "Funds For Good Impact". "Funds for Good Impact" devotes all of its financial resources to the fight against poverty and to job creation, allocating unsecured loans and support to people in difficulty with a business project, enabling them to start their own business. More information is also available at <u>www.fundsforgood.eu</u> .
Investment policy	>	The Sub-fund will seek long-term capital appreciation by investing principally in equity securities of European issuers listed and traded on regulated markets. The Sub-fund may invest in equities of issuers of all capitalisations (small, medium, large). Also permitted are: rights issued by a company entitling holders to subscribe for additional securities issued by that company, warrants, convertible securities and preferred shares, if issued by companies whose ordinary shares are listed or traded on stock exchanges in regulated markets, certificates of deposit and units or shares of UCITS and other UCIs, including, but not limited to, exchange-traded funds.
		The Sub-fund will be benchmarked against the Morgan Stanley Capital International Europe Index ("MSCI Europe") over periods of several years which it seeks to outperform. The MSCI Europe Index is a market capitalisation index designed to measure the performance of developed markets in Europe. The MSCI Europe Index currently consists of the following sixteen developed market indices: Austria, Belgium, Denmark, Finland, France, Germany, Ireland, Italy, the Netherlands, Norway, Portugal, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland and the United Kingdom.
		The Sub-fund will not invest more than 10% of its net assets in UCITS and other UCIs. The Sub-fund will not invest more than 5% of its net assets in warrants.
		The Sub-fund may use investment techniques and financial derivative instruments for efficient portfolio management and/or investment purposes within the limits set forth in Section 6 "Investment Restrictions". Futures contracts will be used to hedge market risk or to increase exposure to an underlying market. Futures contracts will be used to hedge or increase exposure to an increase in the value of an asset, currency, product or deposit. Options will be used to hedge or achieve exposure to a particular market instead of using physical security. Swaps (including swaptions) will be used to obtain profits as well as to hedge existing long positions. Forward exchange transactions will be used to reduce the risk of adverse
		market fluctuations in exchange rates or to increase foreign currency exposure or to change the exposure to foreign currency fluctuations from one country to another. "Caps" and "floors" will be used to hedge interest rate movements exceeding given minimum or maximum levels. Contracts for differences will be used to increase equity exposure. Credit default swaps will be used to

isolate and transfer the exposure or transfer the credit risk associated with a reference asset or reference asset index.

The plan is to manage the Sub-fund under normal circumstances with long exposure only.

The objective of the Sub-fund is to invest sustainably within the Environmental. social > meaning of Article 9 of the Sustainability Regulation and to and governance criteria contribute to a reduction in carbon emissions with a view to achieving the long-term global warming limitation targets set by the Paris Agreement. The selection of the assets making up the Subfund's portfolio will comply with the Funds For Good Responsible Investment Policy, available in its entirety on www.fundsforgood.eu.

This policy covers the following aspects:

Removal from its investment universe of a series of 1 companies or sectors, in particular companies:

(i) violating the UN Global Compact principles;

(ii) producing weapons that violate fundamental humanitarian principles and any company that derives more than 5% of its revenue from conventional weapons;

(iii) deriving more than 10% of their income from the production of tobacco, tobacco products or the distribution, sale or wholesale of tobacco;

(iv) in the energy sector in cases where less than 40% of revenues are from gas or renewable energy sources;

(v) that produce electricity in cases where more than 30% of the energy production is based on nuclear, gas or oil resources.

In addition, the Sub-fund will not invest in commodity futures and government debt or public companies from countries that violate the UN Global Compact principles or are under EU embargo.

- 2. A policy covering Environmental, Social and Governance aspects, aiming, among other things, to improve its social aspect and the establishment of a voting rights policy to encourage the principles of good governance.
- 3. A "Best-in-class" policy, consisting in favouring investments in the most virtuous companies in terms of their social responsibility, and avoiding the less virtuous ones.
- 4. A 20% reduction in the Sub-fund's carbon footprint relative to an index representative of its investment policy as reported in the monthly report available at www.fundsforgood.eu.

Deference currency		
Reference currency	>	EUR
Investment horizon	>	More than 3 years
		The Sub-fund's investment policy is suitable for investors who are interested in the financial markets and who are looking for capital appreciation over the long term. The investor must be prepared to accept significant losses due to fluctuations in stock market prices.
Risk management	>	Commitment approach.
Risk factors	>	Investors are invited to read section 7 "Risks associated with an investment in the SICAV" of this Prospectus to find out the potential risks associated with an investment in this Sub-fund.

Benchmark Index	>	<u>MSCI Europe</u> The benchmark is used for performance comparison purposes only. The Sub-fund is actively managed, meaning that the Manager makes investment decisions with a view to achieving the investment objective and policy of the Sub-fund. This active management includes making decisions regarding asset selection, regional allocation, sector views and overall level of market exposure. The Manager is in no way limited by the components of the benchmark in positioning its portfolio, and the Sub-fund may not hold all or any of the components of the benchmark.
		This index does not take into account the sustainable investment objective of the Sub-fund.

MA	NAGE	R AND/OR INVESTMENT ADVISOR
Manager	>	Acadian Asset Management LLC subject to oversight by the US Securities and Exchange Commission.
		DISTRIBUTION
Distribution Coordinator	>	Funds for Good S.A.
COMMISSIO	NS AN	D FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER
Subscription fee	>	Maximum 3% for the benefit of the Sub-fund's distributors
Redemption fee	>	None
Conversion fee	>	None

Conversion fee	>

COMMISSI	ONS /	AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND
Management and Distribution Fee	>	The Management and Distribution Fee is paid respectively to the Manager and the Distribution Coordinator by the SICAV.
		The Management and Distribution Fee is different depending on the share class to which it applies.
		Class R Dis shares:
		1.50% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average n assets of the share class concerned.
		Class R Acc shares:
		1.50% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average r assets of the share class concerned.
		Class I Acc shares:
		0.75% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average r assets of the share class concerned.
		Class C Acc shares:
		1.10% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average r assets of the share class concerned.
		Class C Dis shares:
		1.10% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average n assets of the share class concerned.

Class F Acc shares:

		0.625% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.
Custodian commission (excluding transaction and correspondence fees)	>	Retention fee of up to 0.04% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund. Custodian fee of a maximum of 0.03% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund with a minimum of \in 1,000 per month per Sub-fund.
		A cash flow monitoring fee of up to €800 per month for the Sub- fund is applicable.
		Sub-custodian fees and liquidation fees are charged in addition. Where applicable, VAT will be added.
Management Company fees	>	Maximum 0.05% p.a. based on the Sub-fund's average net assets with a minimum not exceeding €10,000 per Sub-fund.
Central Administration Fee		Fixed fee of EUR 24,300 per Sub-fund per annum and a maximum of 0.021% based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund.
Other fees and commissions	>	The Sub-fund will also charge other operating costs as listed in of the SICAV's Articles of Association.

Share classes	>	Share class	ISIN code	Currency
available to		Class R Dis	LU1783237925	EUR
subscribers		Class R Acc	LU1783237842	EUR
		Class I Acc	LU1783237768	EUR
		Class C Acc	LU1783237412	EUR
		Class C Dis	LU1783237503	EUR
		Class F Acc	LU1783237685	EUR
Minimum initial subscription	>	Share class	Minimum initial sub	scription
		Class R Dis	EUR 100	
		Class R Acc	EUR 100	
	2"	Class I Acc	EUR 500,00	0
		Class C Acc	EUR 100	
		Class C Dis	EUR 100	
		Class F Acc	EUR 100	

The SICAV's Board of Directors may accept, at its discretion, subscriptions for an amount less than the minimum initial subscription amount defined above, while ensuring that shareholders are treated equally on the same Valuation Day.

Subscriptions, redemptions and conversions	>	Until 30 August 2021: Subscription, redemption and conversion orders received before 4:30 p.m. (Luxembourg time) at EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION on the full business day in Luxembourg preceding the Valuation Day will be executed at the Net Asset Value of that Valuation Day, subject to the fees indicated above under "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER" and "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND".
		As from 31 August 2021: Subscription, redemption and conversion orders received before 4:30 p.m. (Luxembourg time) at EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION on the Valuation Day will be processed based on the Net Asset Value of that Valuation Day, subject to the fees indicated above under "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER" and "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND".
		Subscriptions and redemptions must be paid up no later than three full Luxembourg business days following the Valuation Day. Subscription, redemption and conversion orders are thus submitted by investors at an unknown NAV. Investors' attention is drawn to the fact that the SICAV does not authorise market timing practices. The SICAV reserves the right to reject all subscription and conversion orders issued by an investor that the SICAV suspects of employing such practices, and to take the necessary measures to protect SICAV shareholders, where appropriate.
Valuation Day	>	Every full business day in Luxembourg. The Net Asset Value will be effectively calculated on the next full bank business day in Luxembourg following the Valuation Day
Publication of NAV	>	At the registered office of the SICAV.
Listing on Luxembourg Stock Exchange	>	No.

		POINTS OF CONTACT
Subscriptions, redemptions, conversions and transfers	>	EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION Fax :+352 48 65 61 8002
Request for documentation	>	https://www.waystone.com

FFG – CLEANTECH II

		INVESTMENT POLICY
Objective of the Sub- fund	>	The objective of the FFG – Cleantech II Sub-fund is to seek long- term capital appreciation through a diversified portfolio of equity securities of clean technology companies. In addition to its financial objective, the Sub-fund generates a concrete social impact through the SICAV's Distribution Coordinator, whose approach is certified by Forum Ethibel. After deducting its operating expenses, the Distribution Coordinator donates the greater of 50% of its net profits or 10% of its turnover to the social project it has set up and runs itself, "Funds For Good Impact". "Funds for Good Impact" devotes all of its financial resources to the fight against poverty and to job creation, allocating unsecured loans and support to people in difficulty with a business project, enabling them to start their own business. More information is also available at <u>www.fundsforgood.eu</u> .
Investment policy	>	The Sub-fund aims to achieve long-term capital growth.
		It is actively managed and invests mainly directly in shares of cleantech companies listed on regulated markets.
		The concept of "cleantech" covers all products and services that enable a cleaner and more efficient use of the earth's natural resources such as energy, water, air or raw materials. The Sub-fund targets companies operating in sectors such as renewable energy, energy efficiency, water treatment, waste recycling, pollution control and advanced materials.
		On an ancillary basis, the Sub-fund may invest in equities of "cleantech" companies listed on regulated markets located in emerging countries.
		Income is retained and reinvested by the Sub-fund. Furthermore, the Sub-fund will not invest in companies related to industries such as tobacco, arms, coal, or in companies linked to, among other things, environmental scandals, human rights violations, corruption.
Environmental, social and governance criteria	>	The objective of the Sub-fund is to promote environmental and/or social characteristics within the meaning of Article 8 of the Sustainability Regulation. The selection of the assets making up the Sub-fund's portfolio will comply with the following aspects of the Funds For Good Responsible Investment Policy, available in its entirety on www.fundsforgood.eu.
		1. Removal from its investment universe of a series of companies or sectors, in particular companies:
		(i) violating the UN Global Compact principles;
		(ii) producing weapons that violate fundamental humanitarian principles and any company that derives more than 5% of its revenue from conventional weapons;
		 (iii) deriving more than 10% of their income from the production of tobacco, tobacco products or the distribution, sale or wholesale of tobacco;

(iv) in the energy sector in cases where less than 40% of revenues are from gas or renewable energy sources;

(v) that produce electricity in cases where more than 30% of the energy production is based on nuclear, gas or oil resources.

In addition, the Sub-fund will not invest in commodity futures and government debt or public companies from countries that violate the UN Global Compact principles or are under EU embargo.

Reference currency	>	EUR
Investment horizon	>	More than 3 years
		The Sub-fund's investment policy is suitable for investors who are interested in the financial markets and who are looking for capital appreciation over the long term. The investor must be prepared to accept significant losses due to fluctuations in stock market prices.
Risk management	>	Commitment approach.
Risk factors	>	Investors are invited to read section 7 "Risks associated with an investment in the SICAV" of this Prospectus to find out the potential risks associated with an investment in this Sub-fund.
Benchmark Index	>	The Sub-fund is actively managed, meaning that the Manager makes investment decisions with a view to achieving the investment objective and policy of the Sub-fund without reference to an index. This active management includes making decisions regarding asset selection, regional allocation, sector views and overall level of market exposure. The Manager is in no way limited by the components of a benchmark index in the positioning of its portfolio.
	MANAG	ER AND/OR INVESTMENT ADVISOR
Manager	2	> Capricorn Partners NV subject to supervision by FSMA Belgium

		DISTRIBUTION
Distribution Coordinator	>	Funds for Good S.A.

COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER					
Subscription fee	>	Maximum 3% for the benefit of the Sub-fund's distributors			
Redemption fee	>	None			
Conversion fee	>	None			

COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND					
Management and Distribution Fee	>	The Management and Distribution Fee is paid respectively to the Manager and the Distribution Coordinator by the SICAV.			
		The Management and Distribution Fee is different depending on the share class to which it applies.			
		Class R Dis shares:			

FFG SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law

Max. 1.60% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.

Class R Acc shares:

Max. 1.60% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.

Class I Acc shares:

Max. 0.85% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.

Class C Acc shares:

Max 1.05% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.

Class C Dis shares:

Max 1.05% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.

Class F Acc shares:

Max. 0.65% p.a. calculated quarterly and based on the average net assets of the share class concerned.

Custodian commission (excluding transaction and correspondence fees)
 Retention fee of up to 0.04% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund. Custodian fee of a maximum of 0.03% p.a. payable monthly and based on the average net assets of the Sub-fund with a minimum of €1,000 per month per Sub-fund.

A cash flow monitoring fee of up to ${\in}800$ per month for the Subfund is applicable.

Sub-custodian fees and liquidation fees are charged in addition. Where applicable, VAT will be added.

- Management Company
fees>Maximum 0.05% p.a. based on the Sub-fund's average net
assets with a minimum not exceeding €10,000 per Sub-fund.
- Central Administration>Fixed fee of EUR 24,300 per Sub-fund per annum and a
maximum of 0.021% based on the average net assets of the Sub-
fund.
- Other fees and
commissions>The Sub-fund will also charge other operating costs as listed in of
the SICAV's Articles of Association.

Share classes available to subscribers	>	Share class	ISIN code	Currency
	2	Class R Dis	LU2059537790	EUR
		Class R Acc	LU2059537873	EUR
		Class I Acc	LU2059537956	EUR
		Class C Acc	LU2059538095	EUR
	P.,	Class C Dis	LU2059538178	EUR
		Class F Acc	LU2059538251	EUR
Minimum initial > subscription	>	Share class	Minimum initial subscription	
		Class R Dis	EUR 100	
		Class R Acc	EUR 100	
		Class I Acc	EUR 500,000	
		Class C Acc	EUR 100	
		Class C Dis	EUR 100	
		Class F Acc	EUR 100	

TRADING OF SHARES

		FFG SICAV with multiple sub-funds governed by Luxembourg law
		The SICAV's Board of Directors may accept, at its discretion, subscriptions for an amount less than the minimum initial subscription amount defined above, while ensuring that shareholders are treated equally on the same Valuation Day.
Subscriptions, redemptions and conversions	>	Subscription, redemption and conversion orders received before 4:30 p.m. (Luxembourg time) at EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION on the Valuation Day will be processed based on the Net Asset Value of that Valuation Day, subject to the fees indicated above under "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SHAREHOLDER" and "COMMISSIONS AND FEES CHARGED TO THE SUB-FUND".
		Subscriptions and redemptions must be paid up no later than three full Luxembourg business days following the Valuation Day. Subscription, redemption and conversion orders are thus submitted by investors at an unknown NAV. Investors' attention is drawn to the fact that the SICAV does not authorise market timing practices. The SICAV reserves the right to reject all subscription and conversion orders issued by an investor that the SICAV suspects of employing such practices, and to take the necessary measures to protect SICAV shareholders, where appropriate.
Valuation Day	>	Every full business day in Luxembourg. The Net Asset Value will be effectively calculated on the next full bank business day in Luxembourg following the Valuation Day
Publication of NAV	>	At the registered office of the SICAV.
Listing on Luxembourg Stock Exchange	>	No.
		POINTS OF CONTACT
Subscriptions, redemptions, conversions and transfers	>	 EUROPEAN FUND ADMINISTRATION Fax :+352 48 65 61 8002

> https://www.waystone.com

Request for documentation